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Audit Highlights

Annual Financial Report
Cumberland County, Tennessee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Scope

We have audited the basic financial statements of Cumberland County as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010.

Results
Our report on Cumberland County’s financial statements is unqualified.
Our audit resulted in 13 findings and recommendations, which we have reviewed with
Cumberland County management. Detailed findings, recommendations, and management’s
responses are included in the Single Audit section of this report.
Findings

The following are summaries of the audit findings:

OFFICES OF FINANCE DIRECTOR, TRUSTEE, AND CUMBERLAND
COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY

. The county’s General, General Debt Service, and Solid Waste Disposal funds; the
Cumberland County Railroad Authority’s General Fund; and the trustee’s cash
journal required material audit adjustments for proper financial statement
presentation.

OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR

¢  The county mayor entered into agreements on behalf of the county without County
Commission approval.

OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

¢  The School Federal Projects and Solid Waste Disposal funds had fund deficits.

¢ Appropriations exceeded estimated available funds in the Solid Waste/Sanitation
Fund.

¢  School Department leave records were not on file to support payroll disbursements.




¢  The office had deficiencies in payroll procedures.
. Cumberland County did not account for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
Grants separately from other county funds.

ELECTION OFFICE AND OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

3 Deficiencies were noted in the Election Office and the Finance Office.
. Minutes of the Election Commission were not maintained for all meetings.

OFFICE OF SHERIFF

. Receipts were not issued at the time of collection, and some collections were not
deposited within three days.

OFFICE OF CUMBERLAND COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY

¢ Expenditures exceeded appropriations.

OTHER FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

. Cumberland County has material recurring audit findings.
¢  Duties were not segregated adequately in the Finance Department and the Offices of
Trustee, County Clerk, Register, and Sheriff.
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Cumberland County Officials
June 30, 2010

Officials

Brock Hill, County Mayor

Wendell Houston, Road Superintendent
Aarona VanWinkle, Director of Schools
Carolyn Turner, Trustee

David Simcox, Assessor of Property
Jule Bryson, County Clerk

Larry Sherrill, Circuit and General Sessions Courts Clerk
Sue Tollett, Clerk and Master

Judy Graham Swallows, Register
Butch Burgess, Sheriff

Nathan Brock, Finance Director

Board of County Commissioners

Carmin Lynch, Chairman

Jeff Brown Trey Kerley
Kenneth Carey, Jr. Greg Maxwell
Terry Carter Johnny Presley
Clyde Cramer Harry Sabine

Jack Davis Robert Safdie
David Gibson Charles Seiber
Michael Harvel Creed Lynn Tollett
Nancy Hyder Wendell Wilson

Jim Inman
Board of Education

Shirley Parris, Chairman

Jim Blalock Victor Randolph
Brian Houston Bob Scarbrough
Roger Hyder Dan Schlafer
Richard Janeway Mary Smith

Cumberland County Railroad Authority
Board of Directors

Brock Hill, County Mayor, Chairman
George Adcock



Cumberland County Officials (Cont.)

Financial Management Committee

Brock Hill, County Mayor, Chairman

Wendell Houston, Road Superintendent Kenneth Carey, Jr.
Aarona VanWinkle, Director of Schools Clyde Cramer
Jeff Brown Harry Sabine
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMESK. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

December 15, 2010

Cumberland County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Cumberland County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cumberland County, Tennessee, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise Cumberland County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of Cumberland County’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the discretely presented Cumberland County Emergency Communications
District, which represent 2.3 percent and 1.5 percent, respectively, of the assets and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Cumberland County
Emergency Communications District, is based on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the auditing standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
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evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units
of Cumberland County, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 15, 2010, on our consideration of Cumberland County’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

As described in Note V.B., Cumberland County has adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Intangible Assets; and Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments, which became effective for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
budgetary comparison, pension, and other postemployment benefits information on
pages 77 through 84 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise Cumberland County’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements,
budgetary comparison schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt
Service Fund, combining and individual fund financial statements of the Cumberland
County School Department and the Cumberland County Railroad Authority (discretely
presented component units), and miscellaneous schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
schedules of nonmajor governmental funds and the General Debt Service Fund, combining
and individual fund financial statements of the Cumberland County School Department
and the Cumberland County Railroad Authority (discretely presented component units),
and the miscellaneous schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Very truly yours,

%4,/4//;/

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/sb

14



Basic FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15



(penunuo))

SHLLI'TIIVI'T

0 0 0 80%°L% 80%°L% 0
0 0 0 VL LLG 995831 081671
L9T'g 0 0 0 0 0
8G6 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 S69°76 0 S6S76
$9¢°L 0 G31'86 €L0°1% 0 €L0°1%
9¥1°LG $ 8681 €69°79¢ $ 920°€0% G86°6¢ $  1¥0'e91 $
161°L06°'T $ €997¢ GGG'6LL38  $ ¥35°663°€6 981606 $  86€°066'C6 $
GG0°LLE 0 EEERZKS 398203 336°6L ¥€6°331°g
0 0 0 LLESTT LLESTT 0
0 0 865°9L6 %91°08¢°€3 0 %91°08€°€3
969°LL8 0 $65°806°09 86160503 193G L0g°005°03
0 0 0 6923709 0 6923709
0 0 ¥97'880°% €9G°e9e‘T 0¥8°9% €IL'81IET
L¥0‘g 0 0 886929 0 886929
000°00T 0 0 0 0 0
869°C 0 0 0 0 0
985¢°9% 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 (612°002) (168°96%) 0 (168°96%)
0 0 925°GLE'8 69L°968°TT 0 69L°968°TT
0 868°T 8LL%8¢‘¢E 6991871 0 6991571
0 0 0 (BOL'EFT'T) 0 (BOL'EFT'T)
SH8LY 0 8¥F L 996°L30°L 668°G L31°830°L
0 0 0 T19°L61°¢ 0 T19°L61°¢
0 0 1GLOVT 0 0 0
0 G9L.2€ ¥91°'976°¢ 996°G08‘LT 16L°G59 G0G‘0ST LT
¥92°0LS $ 0 g6 $ LBT'1S 00% $  166°09 $

uoawwﬁﬂ %ﬁ&oﬂﬁ}w uﬂ&EpMNQ@Q Mwaorﬁ mmﬁfﬁﬁ}w mmﬁfﬁﬁ}w
wﬁoﬁ.momﬁﬁaaoo vNOMﬁN‘m Mooﬂom ®Q%u.mmwﬁmw5m M.mwﬁwaﬁ.awxwow

KouaSrowry Ayuno) Ayuno) JUOWUIOAOY) ATRUILI

%HQSOO vﬁmiwﬂaﬂ_o ﬁCNE@DEBO
ﬁﬂﬁ?wﬂaﬂo

sjtu) Juauodwo))

V 1quxy

o[qefed edeureloy
a[qedrq sjoeIu0)

o[qeArd seouesqy poresusduwio))
a[qeieJ suononpa(J [[o1ed
a[qeARJ 18910)U] PONIOY

[[018eJ ponaIddy
o[qeARJ SIUN00Y

$19SSY [€30],

sjessy [elde)) 10Yl1Q0

qJuewdo[eAs(] pue SeTIIoR ] [[JPUe|

2InjoNnI)seIyul

sjueweAoxdw] pue ssurpring
U01IRI0aIda(] POIB[NWNIIY JO 10N SIOSSY

$89I801J UT UOI}ONIISUO))

pue]

‘pojeroaxds(] J0N SIOSSY

sjossy [eide)

150)) 9ouenssT 4qa(J - S9SIRY)) PaLIdO

$19SSY PajoLIIsay 19310
S[(BATOASY] }SOIOIU] PANIIOY

sosuadxy predaid

soxe [, £110d01J S[(I109][0OU[] I0J SOUBMO[[Y
a[qeATa09Yy soxe [, Ajredoig

STUSWUISAOY) I8Y1() WOIJ an(]
$O[qI309[[00U[) I0] SOUBMO[[Y

S[(BATS09Y SIUN0IIY

demg ajey 150J03U] - MO[JIN() PaLISJO(

SOLIOJUSAU]

SJUAUIISOAU] PUB YSB)) pa[ood ut A3mbry

yse)

0T0¢ "0¢ sunp

§7955Y N JO JUQUIOTeIS

ECEEERUEN) .>u§50© pueloqUN)

16



"JUSUIS)BYS STYY Jo Jaed [BISSIUT UR 818 SJUSUISIR)S [RIOURBUIJ 973 0} S9I0U Y],

955°G60°T $ <S9L'ze $ 119'€90€L $ GIG'11L'6 $  (169G29) $  €06°€ee0tT $
861909 G9.°¢ $€9°G3L°T LTIFBFTITP) (STO°S¥2°T) (307°L68°GF)
0 0 06L°eh 867 Ve 0 86776
0 0 9gz‘0o1e’e 0 0 0
0 0 0 866V LE 836VLE 0
000°00T 0 0 6€3°L66TT 0 6€3°L66TT
0 0 169°€6L 0 0 0
0 0 8¥1°09 0 0 0
0 0 0 0€S'8CT‘T 0 0€8'8CT‘T
0 0 0 L1918 0 L1918
0 0 0 9%5‘09% 0 9%5‘09%
0 0 0 9€3°31 0 9€3°31
0 0 Z10°831°L9 968°LVG 96€°LVG 0
86L°88¢ $0 $ 0 $ 6£0°598°8¢ $ 0 $  680°398'8¢ $
GE9'T118 $ 868°T $ ¥¥091L6  $ G18'88178 $  LL8TEST $  GE¥'999%8 $
000°93L 0 1606751 868169 €30G60°T GL8°6GG 79
000°¢¥ 0 15508 ¥70'81L°E S60F¥S 676°CLY'E
0 0 FLLCE6 L LOE'8GETT 0 LOE'8GGTT
0 0 0 119°L61°C 0 119°L61°C
0 0 0 0951 0 0851
0 0 0 8508 0 8508
0 0 0 000°0€ 0 00008
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 96¥°6% $ 0 $  967'6% $
uoawwﬁa %uaoﬂﬁiw uE&EpMNQ@Q Mwaorﬁ wwﬁfﬁﬁ}w wwﬁfﬁﬁ}w
wﬁoﬁ.momﬁﬁgaoo vNO.MEN‘m Mooﬁﬁom ®Q%u.mmwﬁmw5m M.mwﬁwaﬁhw.\wow
KoueSrowiy Ayuno) Ayuno) JUOUWIUISA0Y) Arewrti
%HEBOO vﬁmiwﬂgﬂ_o ﬁCNE@DEBO
@Eﬁ?wﬂaso

syrup) jueuoduro))

V 1quxy

(FogRQ) $19SSY 19N T8I0,

pejoLseIun)
sesodang 1931
wer3olJ uoryeonpy oseyqg
KepmQ 1e31de)
9IAIRG 199(
BLISISJB)) [BIIUR))
$309[01J [eI0ps] [00YdS
SYIOM dT[qnJ/AeMYSTH
[ox3uo) sni(g
UORBIUBS/9ISEM PI[OS
90UBUSJUIRIN [IB[ PUB 9SNOYIIN0))
:10] poloLIsoy
sjessy [ejtde)) ur pajseAu]
19o(] pere[ey JO 10N ‘s10ssy [eltde)) Ul paIsaAu]

SLUSSV LUN

SOUI[IqerT] [810],
B9 X 9U() UBYJ, SIOJA UL an(]
IBoX 9U() UTYIIM on(g
SONIIqRT ] JUSLINOUON
soxg ], £110d0IJ JUSIINY) - ONUSAY POIISJO(]
demg a7ey 1S0J0IU] - SATIBALIS(]
o[qeAr s11sodo(] IowoIsNy)
:519SSY POJOLIISOY WOIJ d[(rARJ SONI[IqRIT JuaLIn))
Spuog U0 1S0191U] PaINJBIA
a[qeieJ spuog paInjey
99880UUD [, JO 9181 01 an(]

"LNOD) SHILI'TIIVI'T

("7U0))) S195SY 70N JO JUeWaTers
9955oUUR ], 'AJUN0)) pUBIoquny)

17



(penunuo))

(L€6°76) $ (6VL°D $ (8e0'gog'ey) $ O $ 0 $ 0 $ L9€703'T $ 069°€G8°0T § VOE'0L6'T § S80°L3E’LE $ syruq) yuenodwo)) 8o,
(LE6'V6) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 %¥0'808 6,606 PLYSI(T SUOTRIIUNWWO]) KOUSSIOWY
0 6VLT) 0 0 0 0 17€°€60°T 0 0 060°¢60°T Koy peorrey
0 $ 0 $ (86020Z'eY) $ O $ 0 $ 0 $ 920111 $ 069°€S8°0T $ 392'ZIT'T $ 910°63€'Se $ Juswjreds(J [00YOS

:s31uq) Jusuodwo))

0 $0 $ 0 $ (8L3'T92'8T) $ (1BL'399°T) $ (L9¢'8699T) $ TLO¥69 $ 039°08¥'E€ § 67E'€869 § SIC6IV6Z §$ JUBWUIIAOY) ATBWIL] [BIO,

0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (I8L299'T) ¢ (18L399°'D) § 0 $§ 0 $ GLL'ET $ 660°€6E $ 265'6L0C  $ S9TIAT)OY adA)-ssaursng [B10],
0 $ 0 $0 $ (18L299'T) ¢ (18L299°) § O $ 0 $ GLL'ET $ 660°€6€ $ 269°6L0C $ ypue]

:SOT)TAT)OY odAj-ssaursng

0 $ 0 $0 $  (LeG'86S9T) § 0 $  (Lee'86¢91) $ TLOV69 $ 8¥8'9¢v'e $ 0920659 $ 92L'68E°LT $ JUSWUIDA0Y) ATRW LI [830],
0 0 0 (GY1°031) 0 (G¥1°031) 0 0 0 SYT'03T 9OIAIBG 39T 1PYI0
0 0 0 (TST'GLLT) 0 (TGT'GLLT) 0 0 0 TCTGLLT 193 WI8)-3UOT UO 389493U]
0 0 0 (€92°7¥6) 0 (€92°7¥6) G13'89¢€ LVV0V1'e 00¢‘e [d4aCld A SYIOM OTqn/sAemysty
0 0 0 (622°¢89°T) 0 (632°989°T) €1L°239% 0 00T°¢ ZV0'€S6°1 suotrjexad() 1BYIQ
0 0 0 (806°9¥1) 0 (806°9¥1) 0 0 0 806°9¥ 1 §90IN0S9Y [BANBN PUB 8INIMOLISY
0 0 0 (612°169) 0 (612°169) 0 000°91T 61S'9Y 8€L'ESL S9OTATSG [BUOIIRDIOSY PUE TeInjn)) Teroog
0 0 0 (¥08°€98) 0 (¥08°€98) 0 TLL'6E0'T 9€8°¢0T‘e T1%°L00°S SIBJ[O M PUB I[ESH Olqnd
0 0 0 (6¥1°6699) 0 (6¥1°6699) ev1'e9 G%6'831 0¥¢‘6€8 LGL'OEL L &3e3eg OTIqNg
0 0 0 (S82°089) 0 (S82°089) 0 21879 901926 €03°TLI'T TSN JO UOTYBIISTUTIPY
0 0 0 (€19°L¥9) 0 (€19°L¥9) 0 966°1¢€ 1€L°060°T 0VE‘0LL T soueUL]
0 $ 0 $0 $ (16L°L¥ED)  $ 0 $ (aeLL¥e?) $ 0 $ L687E $ 8167LS $ 909°L66'c  $ FUSWIUISAOY) TBIIUDY)
SOTTATIOY [BIUSWUIDAOY)

{JUSWUISAOY) ATRWITL ]

1011)ST(] Kuroyny Juaunyreda (] 1®10], SOTIATIOY SOI}IATIOY SUOIINQLIJUO)) SUOIINLIJUO)) EERIVNEN] Sosuadxy SWRIS0IJ/SU0IIoun, |

SUOTIBITUNWWIO)) peoafrey [o0yos ad£y-ssoursng [BIUWUIDAOK) pue pue 10§
Aduddrowy Ajuno)) Ajuno) JUOWUIOA0Y) ATBRWILIJ sjueIn) sjueIn) sa8aey)
Ayunop pue[rdquny  puepeqUn) [eyde) JurgeradQ
puepeqUny SONUIAdY WBIS0IJ

sjtu() jueuoduwio))

S30SSY JoN Ul Sa3uBY)) puB anueAdy (asuadxy) 19N

0T0Z "0¢ oUn[ popu 16aX o3 10
SOTTAT)OY JO JUOW0OTe)S
wwwwmﬂﬂwrﬁ .>uﬁ300 @ﬁﬂﬁu@ﬁsﬂo

q 1qryxy

18



‘JuaWa)R)S STY) JO Jred [eIS9IUT UR I8 SJUSWSIB]S [RIOURUI 83} 0} S9J0U 8],

"SS[D SOLIISNPUL PUR SOPEI} 93 A( PJONIJSUOI 9SNOY B JO S[BS 9} WOoIJ Spoad0id (T)

956°G60°T $ 99L'ce § Trge90eL $§ @IgTiLe $ (169769 §  €06CEEOT  $ 0103 ‘0€ dunp ‘3ye() s39ssY BN
0 0 0 (LE€68) 0 (LE€68) Jueumysnlpy porrod-Iotig
LYELYTT v1g've €1E'679°¢L L09°06S°0T (0L6%87) LLS'GLOTT 6002 ‘T Anp ‘(37ga(q) S19SSY 10N
(169°19) $ (6VL°D $ (308°¢89) $  (8c0°06L) $  (TeL'LeD) $  (Leg'eg9) $ §798SY J9N UT 95Uy
0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 000¢¢'T $ (000°¢3ST) $ sIojsueL],
9IVGEY $ 0 $ 965919y $§ 0BG ILVLI $§ 0O $ 02T IL¥'LT § SONUDAIY [BIOUDY) [BJO],
0 0 000°€¥T 0 0 0 (1) woy [ewodg
LST 0 80935 086°c¥ 0 086V STI0OURT[OOSTIA
680°TT 0 9L0°G L90°LG¢ 0 L90°LG¢ SSUTUIE]] JUOWISOAU] POJOLIISOLUN)
000°G€ 0 GLI'OV8 LT 19S°LV9T 0 16¢°L¥9°T sureagdor o1yoadg 03
POjOLIISOY JON SUOIINQLIIUO)) PUB SJUBLY)
0 0 ¥87°G 80592 0 80592 SexXe, [BOOT 1930
0 0 0 389°6G¢ 0 389°68¢ Xe [, 109¢] STBSA[OYM
0 0 0 €18°0G¢ 0 €18°0G¢ Xe[, sseutsng
0 0 0 361°69¢ 0 361°69¢ SoXe[, UoT3e31I|
0 0 0 60T°LVY 0 60T°LVY Xe, [910N/[910H
0 0 939°LLO‘L €027S1'e 0 €027S1'2 soxg, sefeg uond(Q 180T
0 0 0 60L°6L0°C 0 60L6L0°C 90TATOG 1qO(] 10] PoTAdTT soxe[, A)10dorg
0 $ 0 $ L9L°GT€L $ 98¥'6E6  $ O $ 9ev'ees’e  $ sesodan g [e1ouer) 10j PoIad] sexe], A3rodoig
SOXE],
SONUIAJY [BISUDY)
10L1)SI(] Kuroyny Juaunyreda (] 18100, SOITATIOY SOITATIOY SUOIINQLIJU0)) SUOIINQLIIUO)) SO0IATRS sesuadxy] SUIeI301J/Suo1joun,j
suorjedIuNuW o)) peoarey Tooyd8 mn—%u.mmwﬁmmsm [ejUsWUIDA0Y) pue pue 103
Aduddrowy Ajuno)) Ajuno) JUOWUIOA0Y) ATBRWILIJ sjueIn) sjueIn) sadaey)
Ayunop pue[rdquny  pue[equn) [eyde) JurgeradQ
pueoquIny SONUAdY WeIS0I]

sjtu() jueuoduwio))

S30SSY JoN Ul SaguBy)) puB anueAdy (asuadxy) 19N

q 1qryxy

"JU0))) SOTITATIOY JO JUOWoIBIS
99SSoUUa ], "AJUN0)) puB[Ioqun,)

19



Cumberland County, Tennessee
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectibles
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Property Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Property Taxes

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Contracts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to State of Tennessee
Matured Bonds Payable
Matured Interest on Bonds

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:

Customer Deposits Payable

Deferred Revenue - Current Property Taxes
Deferred Revenue - Delinquent Property Taxes

Other Deferred Revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumbrances

Reserved for Computer System - Register

Reserved for Automation Purposes -
Reserved for Automation Purposes -
Reserved for Automation Purposes -
Reserved for Automation Purposes -
Reserved for Automation Purposes -

Reserved for Capital Outlay
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Circuit Court

General Sessions Court
Chancery Court
Sheriff

County Clerk

Exhibit C-1

Nonmajor
Funds

Major Funds Other Total

Solid General Govern- Govern-

Waste / Debt mental mental

General Sanitation Service Funds Funds
$ 200 $ 0$ 0$ 50,797 $ 50,997
3,988,128 393,878 11,753,891 1,014,308 17,150,205
7,006,442 7,489 0 8,196 7,022,127
(4,443,702) 0 0 0 (4,443,702)
684,657 8,720 307,194 421,098 1,421,669
58,968 0 0 0 58,968
7,846,751 1,773,731 2,276,277 0 11,896,759
(198,565) (42,388) (55,938) 0 (296,891)
$ 14,942,879 $§ 2,141,430 $ 14,281,424 § 1,494,399 $§ 32,860,132
$ 163,041 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 163,041
21,073 0 0 0 21,073
149,180 0 0 0 149,180
0 0 0 58,968 58,968
29,496 0 0 0 29,496
0 0 30,000 0 30,000
0 0 8,058 0 8,058
1,250 0 0 0 1,250
7,395,891 1,680,884 2,151,532 0 11,228,307
227,546 45,509 62,058 0 335,113
2,250,904 0 162,306 213,687 2,626,897
$ 10,238,381 $§ 1,726,393 $§ 2,413,954 $ 272,655 $§ 14,651,383
$ 235,000 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 235,000
329,453 0 0 0 329,453
2,618 0 0 0 2,618
72,073 0 0 0 72,073
24,468 0 0 0 24,468
39,167 0 0 0 39,167
8,570 0 0 0 8,570
58,149 0 0 0 58,149
3,935,000 0 0 0 3,935,000
0 415,037 0 1,221,744 1,636,781
0 0 11,867,470 0 11,867,470
$ 4,704,498 $ 415,037 $ 11,867,470 $ 1,221,744 $ 18,208,749
$ 14,942,879 $§ 2,141,430 $ 14,281,424 § 1,494,399 $§ 32,860,132

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-2

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit C-1) $ 18,208,749
(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Add: land $ 1,318,713
Add: construction in progress 6,042,259
Add: buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation 20,500,507
Add: infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation 23,380,162
Add: other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 5,122,934 56,364,575

(2) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Less: notes payable $  (2,222,212)
Less: other loans payable (64,460,000)
Less: compensated absences payable (823,635)
Less: other postemployment benefits liability (156,405)
Less: accrued interest on notes 917)
Less: accrued interest on other loans (93,678)
Less: other deferred revenue - premium on debt (71,572)
Add: change in deferred debt issuance costs 626,988 (67,201,431)
(3) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds. 2,962,010
Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 10,333,903

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-3

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Nonmajor
Funds
Major Funds Other
Solid General Govern- Total
Waste / Debt mental Governmental
General Sanitation Service Funds Funds
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 9,838,846 $ 1,471,749 $ 4,021,829 $ 85,949 $§ 15,418,373
Licenses and Permits 210,556 0 0 0 210,556
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 196,326 0 0 66,103 262,429
Charges for Current Services 2,722,356 0 0 4,208 2,726,564
Other Local Revenues 430,393 230,873 230,806 0 892,072
Fees Received from County Officials 2,126,368 0 0 0 2,126,368
State of Tennessee 2,029,756 49,834 0 2,321,016 4,400,606
Federal Government 1,099,906 0 0 0 1,099,906
Other Governments and Citizens Groups 557,873 0 0 25,250 583,123
Total Revenues $ 19,212,380 $ 1,752,456 $ 4,252,635 $ 2,502,526 § 27,719,997
Expenditures
Current:
General Government $ 2,497,597 $ 0$ 0$ 109,586 $ 2,607,183
Finance 1,724,423 0 0 685 1,725,108
Administration of Justice 1,678,688 0 0 0 1,678,688
Public Safety 9,934,350 0 0 40,630 9,974,980
Public Health and Welfare 3,973,068 984,225 0 0 4,957,293
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services 3,001,878 0 0 0 3,001,878
Agriculture and Natural Resources 145,580 0 0 0 145,580
Other Operations 1,490,035 107,738 0 718 1,598,491
Highways 0 70,225 0 2,547,322 2,617,647
Debt Service:
Principal on Debt 0 0 2,298,404 0 2,298,404
Interest on Debt 0 0 1,744,458 0 1,744,458
Other Debt Service 0 0 180,236 0 180,236
Capital Projects - Donated 0 0 764,298 0 764,298
Total Expenditures $ 24,445,619 $ 1,162,188 $ 4,987,396 $ 2,698,941 $§ 33,294,144
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ (5,233,239 $ 590,268 $ (734,761) $  (196,415) §  (7,099,147)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Notes Issued $ 1,677,000 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1,677,000
Refunding Debt Issued 0 0 5,100,000 0 5,100,000
Premiums on Debt Issued 0 0 32,098 0 32,098
Other Loans Issued 1,940,000 0 750,000 0 2,690,000
Transfers In 5,000,000 0 0 0 5,000,000
Transfers Out (1,100,000) (425,000)  (5,000,000) 0 (6,525,000)
Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent 0 0 (5,000,000) 0 (5,000,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 7,617,000 $§ (425,000) $§ (4,117,902) $ 0$ 2,974,098
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 2,283,761 $ 165,268 $ (4,852,663) $ (196,415) $  (2,600,049)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 2,420,737 249,769 16,720,133 1,418,159 20,808,798
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 4,704,498 $ 415,037 $ 11,867,470 $§ 1,221,744 $§ 18,208,749

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

22



Exhibit C-4

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (Exhibit B) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

@

2

~

3

“

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of these assets is allocated
over their useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The
difference between capital outlays and depreciation is itemized as
follows:

Add: capital assets purchased in the current period

Add: assets donated and capitalized

Less: current year depreciation expense

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.
Less: loss on disposal of capital assets
Less: decrease of revenues for the sale of disposed assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported in the funds.
Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2010
Less: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2009

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, other loans) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:

Less: other loan proceeds

Less: note proceeds

Less: refunding other loan proceeds

Less: change in premium on debt issuances

Add: change in deferred debt issuance costs

Add: principal payments on notes

Add: principal payments on other loans

Add: payment to refunding agent

(5) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable

Change in compensated absences payable

Change in other postemployment benefits liability

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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5,733,709
160,985

(1,884,342)

(49,397)

(62,422)

2,962,010

(2,568,181)

(2,690,000)
(1,677,000)
(5,100,000)
(27,943)
55,936
448,404
1,850,000

5,000,000

(27,693)
(63,986)
(112,368)

$ (2,600,049)

4,010,352

(111,819)

393,829

(2,140,603)

(204,047)

$

(652,337)



Exhibit D-1

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation):
Land
Landfill Facilities and Development
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Other Capital Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITTIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Retainage Payable

Accrued Liability for Landfill Closure/Postclosure Care Costs
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued Liability for Landfill Closure/Postclosure Care Costs
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted for Capital Outlay

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets (Deficit)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type
Activities

Major Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund

200
655,751
5,839

661,790

46,840
118,377
2,251
74,437
5,491

247,396

|

909,186

39,985
128,566
217,208
244,095

439,854

1,092,023

1,092,023

< |R|R

1,631,877

247,396
374,928
(1,245,015)

(622,691)




Exhibit D-2

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business-type
Activities

Major Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund

Operating Revenues
Charges for Current Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Public Health and Welfare
Depreciation
Other Charges
Employee Benefits
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Solid Waste Grants
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers
Transfers In

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets (Deficit), July 1, 2009

Net Assets (Deficit), June 30, 2010

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 393,099
$ 393,099
$ 1,610,324
449,280

1,895

18,093

$ 2,079,592
$ (1,686,493)
$ 23,772
$ 23,772
$ (1,662,721)
1,525,000

$ (137,721)
(484,970)

$ (622,691)




Exhibit D-3

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Other Payments
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Grants Received
Transfers from Other Funds
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, July 1, 2009

Cash, June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liability for Landfill Closure Cost

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Cash with Statement of Net Assets
Cash per Net Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments per Net Assets

Cash, June 30, 2010

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type
Activities

Major Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund

$ 401,856
(1,560,998)
(236,233)
(1,895)

$ (1,397,270)

$ 54,438
1,525,000

3 1,679,438
$ 182,168
473,783

3 655,951

$ (1,686,493)

449,280

8,757
157,720
(326,534)

$ (1,397,270)

$ 200
655,751
$ 655,951




Exhibit E

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others

Due to Other Taxing Units

Total Liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency

Funds

$ 2,017,485
4,419
656

1,164,412

$ 3,186,972

$ 4,419
2,018,141

1,164,412

$ 3,186,972



CUMBERLAND COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cumberland County’s financial statements are presented in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local
governments.

The following are the more significant accounting policies of Cumberland County:

A.

Reporting Entity

Cumberland County is a public municipal corporation governed by an elected
18-member board. As required by GAAP, these financial statements present
Cumberland County (the primary government) and its component units. The
component units discussed below are included in the county’s reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with
the county.

Discretely Presented Component Units — The following entities meet the
criteria for discretely presented component units of the county. They are
reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the county.

The Cumberland County School Department operates the public school
system in the county, and the voters of Cumberland County elect its board.
The School Department is fiscally dependent on the county because it may
not issue debt without county approval, and its budget and property tax levy
are subject to the County Commission’s approval. The School Department’s
taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the county and are included as
part of the county’s total tax levy.

The Cumberland County Railroad Authority was created pursuant to
Section 7-56-201, Tennessee Code Annotated. The authority is governed by a
two-member board, which includes the county mayor and a second member
appointed by the Cumberland County Commission. The purpose of the
authority is to acquire, operate, maintain, and dispose of railroad facilities,
properties, and equipment for the benefit of public transportation in
Cumberland County. The authority is funded primarily from state grants.

The Cumberland County Emergency Communications District provides a
simplified means of securing emergency services through a uniform
emergency number for the residents of Cumberland County, and the
Cumberland County Commission appoints its governing body. The district is
funded primarily through a service charge levied on telephone services.
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Before the issuance of most debt instruments, the district must obtain the
County Commission’s approval.

The Cumberland County School Department and the Cumberland County
Railroad Authority do not issue separate financial statements from those of
the county. Therefore, basic financial statements of the School Department
and Railroad Authority are included in this report as listed in the table of
contents. The Cumberland County Emergency Communications District’s
financial statements are published as a separate report. Complete financial
statements of the Cumberland County Emergency Communications
District can be obtained from its administrative office at the following
address:
Administrative Office:

Cumberland County Emergency
Communications District

42 South Bend Drive

Crossville, TN 38555

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
However, when applicable, interfund services provided and used between
functions are not eliminated in the process of consolidation in the Statement
of Activities. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges, are required to be reported separately
from governmental activities in government-wide financial statements.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable. The Cumberland County School Department and Cumberland
County Railroad Authority, component units, only report governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Cumberland County issues all debt for the discretely presented Cumberland
County School Department.

29



Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the
proprietary fund, and fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are excluded from
the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and the major enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund and fiduciary funds financial statements, except for agency
funds, which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when
earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Fund financial statements of Cumberland County are organized into funds,
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major
funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. Cumberland
County reports only one proprietary fund, an enterprise fund.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the
proprietary fund, and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds
and the major enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements. All other governmental funds are aggregated into a
single column on the fund financial statements. The fiduciary funds in total
are reported in a single column.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they become both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the county considers
revenues other than grants to be available if they are collected within 30 days
after year-end. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met and the
revenues are available. Cumberland County considers grants and similar
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest
on long-term debt are recognized as fund liabilities when due or when
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amounts have been accumulated in the General Debt Service Fund for
payments to be made early in the following year.

Property taxes for the period levied, in-lieu-of tax payments, sales taxes,
interest, and miscellaneous taxes are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current period.
Applicable business taxes, litigation taxes, state-shared excise taxes, fines,
forfeitures, and penalties are not susceptible to accrual since they are not
measurable (reasonably estimable). All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when the county receives cash.

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds,
which have no measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Cumberland County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the county’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund — This fund accounts for transactions
related to solid waste collection.

General Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Cumberland County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Solid Waste Disposal Fund — This fund accounts for solid waste
disposal operations of the Cumberland County landfill.

Additionally, Cumberland County reports the following fund type:

Agency Funds — These funds account for amounts collected in an
agency capacity by the constitutional officers, local sales taxes
received by the state to be forwarded to the wvarious cities in
Cumberland County, and funds received from the resale of properties
acquired through property tax sales. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. They do, however, use the accrual basis of
accounting to recognize receivables and payables.
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The discretely presented Cumberland County School Department reports the
following major governmental funds:

General Purpose School Fund — This fund is the primary operating
fund for the School Department. It is used to account for general
operations of the School Department.

School Federal Projects Fund - The School Federal Projects Fund
accounts for restricted federal revenues, which must be expended on
specific education programs.

The discretely presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority reports the
following major governmental fund:

General Fund — This fund is the only operating fund for the Railroad
Authority. It is used to account for general operations of the Railroad
Authority.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to the same
limitations. Cumberland County has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and
contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. The county has one proprietary fund, an enterprise
fund, used to account for transactions at the county’s landfill. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with the fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the county’s enterprise fund are charges for services. Operating
expenses for the enterprise fund include landfill operations and maintenance
costs.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is

the government’s policy to use restricted revenues first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.
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D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1.

Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on
hand and cash on deposit with the county trustee.

State statutes authorize the government to make direct investments in
bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies; deposit accounts
at state and federal chartered banks and savings and loan associations;
repurchase agreements; the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool; bonds of
any state or political subdivision rated A or higher by any nationally
recognized rating service; nonconvertible debt securities of certain federal
government sponsored enterprises; and the county’s own legally issued
bonds or notes.

The county trustee maintains a cash and internal investment pool
that is used by all funds, the discretely presented Cumberland County
School Department, and the discretely presented Cumberland County
Railroad Authority. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
balance sheets or statements of net assets as Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments. Most income from these pooled investments is
assigned to the General Fund. Cumberland County, the School
Department, and the Railroad Authority have adopted a policy of
reporting U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency obligations, and
repurchase agreements with maturities of one year or less when
purchased on the balance sheet at amortized cost. Certificates of
deposit and investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool are
reported at cost. The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and
does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Rule 2a7 allows SEC-registered
mutual funds to use amortized cost rather than fair value to report net
assets to compute share prices if certain conditions are met. State
statutes require the state treasurer to administer the pool under the
same terms and conditions, including collateral requirements, as
prescribed for other funds invested by the state treasurer. All other
Investments are reported at fair value. No investments required to be
reported at fair value were held at the balance sheet date.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds for unremitted current collections outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as due to/from other funds.

All ambulance and property taxes receivables are shown with an
allowance for uncollectibles. Ambulance receivables allowance for
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uncollectibles is based on historical collection data. The allowance for
uncollectible property taxes is equal to 1.31 percent of total taxes
levied.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with
receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been
received, but not yet earned.

Property taxes receivable are recognized as of the date an enforceable
legal claim to the taxable property arises. This date is January 1 and
is referred to as the lien date. However, revenues from property taxes
are recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied, which is
the ensuing fiscal year. Since the receivable is recognized before the
period of revenue recognition, the entire amount of the receivable, less
an estimated allowance for uncollectible taxes, is reported as deferred
revenue as of June 30.

Property taxes receivable are also reported as of June 30 for the taxes
that are levied, collected, and reported as revenue during the current
fiscal year. These property taxes receivable are presented on the
balance sheet with offsetting deferred revenue to reflect amounts not
available as of June 30. Property taxes collected within 30 days of
year-end are considered available and accrued. The allowance for
uncollectible taxes represents the estimated amount of the receivable
that will be filed in court for collection. Delinquent taxes filed in court
for collection are not included in taxes receivable since they are
neither measurable nor available.

Property taxes are levied as of the first Monday in October. Taxes
become delinquent and begin accumulating interest and penalty the
following March 1. Suit must be filed in Chancery Court between the
following February 1 to April 1 for any remaining unpaid taxes.

Additional costs attach to delinquent taxes after a court suit has been
filed.

Most payables are disaggregated on the face of the financial
statements. Current liabilities payable from restricted assets reflected
in the primary government funds represent deposits received and
placed with Cumberland County for cash bonds in-lieu-of performance
bonds received by the Planning Commission from contractors.

Retainage payable in the Solid Waste Disposal Fund represents
amounts withheld from payments made on construction contracts
pending completion of the projects. These amounts are held by the
county trustee as Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments in the Solid
Waste Disposal Fund.
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Inventories

Inventories of the discretely presented Cumberland County School
Department are recorded at cost, determined on the first-in, first-out
method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Governmental funds do not capitalize the cost of capital outlays; these
funds report capital outlays as expenditures upon acquisition.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, and similar items), are
reported in the governmental and business-type columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed.

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure of the primary
government and the discretely presented Cumberland County School
Department are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 50
Other Capital Assets 5-20
Infrastructure:
Roads 40
Bridges 60

Compensated Absences

Cumberland County and the discretely presented Cumberland County
School Department permit employees to accumulate a limited amount
of earned but unused vacation benefits, which will be paid to
employees upon separation of service or annually upon request if
certain circumstances apply. All vacation pay is accrued when
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incurred in the government-wide financial statements for the county.
A liability for vacation pay is reported in the governmental funds only
if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements. Vested or accumulated vacation leave is
required to be accrued when incurred in proprietary funds using the
accrual basis of accounting; however, these amounts would be
immaterial to the financial statements of Cumberland County. The
granting of sick leave has no guaranteed payment attached and
therefore is not required to be accrued or recorded.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund
type in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or proprietary fund type Statement of Net
Assets. Debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line
method. Debt issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt. In refunding transactions,
the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt is netted against the new debt and amortized
over the remaining life of the refunded debt or the life of the new debt
issued, whichever is shorter.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize debt
premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Only the matured portion (the portion that has come due for payment)
of long-term indebtedness, including bonds payable, is recognized as a
liability and expenditure in the governmental fund financial
statements. Liabilities and expenditures for other long-term obligations,
including compensated absences, landfill closure/postclosure care
costs, and other postemployment benefits, are recognized to the extent
that the liabilities have matured (come due for payment) each period.

Net Assets and Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund
in the fund financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and
displayed in three components:
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a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the
definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related
debt.

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A), the
account Restricted for Other Purposes for the primary government
consists of various restrictions totaling $534,498 with the primary
restrictions being for computer systems for various offices.

As of June 30, 2010, Cumberland County had $43,920,058 in
outstanding debt for capital purposes for the discretely presented
Cumberland County School Department. This debt is a liability of
Cumberland County, but the capital assets acquired are reported in
the financial statements of the School Department. Therefore,
Cumberland County has incurred a liability significantly decreasing
its unrestricted net assets with no corresponding increase in the
county’s capital assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose.

8. Prior-period Adjustment

A prior-period adjustment totaling $88,337 was recognized in the
Statement of Activities. This prior-period adjustment resulted from a
decrease to the value of the capital assets at July 1, 2009, because the
historical values of the assets estimated by the primary government
were overstated.

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
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Primary Government

Exhibit C-2 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Exhibit J-3 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the balance sheet of governmental funds with the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Discretely Presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority

The Cumberland County Railroad Authority did not have capital assets, debt,
and accruals or deferrals to report; therefore, the only reconciling items from
the governmental fund financial statements to the government-wide financial
statements were reclassifications and are noted on the face of the basic
financial statements.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances and the government-wide Statement of Activities

Primary Government

Exhibit C-4 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net change in fund balances — total
governmental funds with the change in net assets of governmental activities
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Exhibit J-5 includes explanations of the nature of individual elements of
items required to reconcile the net change in fund balances — total
governmental funds with the change in net assets of governmental activities
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Discretely Presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority

The Cumberland County Railroad Authority did not have capital assets, debt,
and accruals or deferrals to report; therefore, the only reconciling items from
the governmental fund financial statements to the government-wide financial
statements were reclassifications and are noted on the face of the basic
financial statements.
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I11.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for all governmental funds except the
Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund (special revenue fund), which is not
budgeted. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The county is required by state statute to adopt annual budgets. Annual
budgets are prepared on the basis in which current available funds must be
sufficient to meet current expenditures. Expenditures and encumbrances
may not legally exceed appropriations authorized by the County Commission
and any authorized revisions. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end
of each fiscal year.

The budgetary level of control is at the major category level established by
the County Uniform Chart of Accounts, as prescribed by the Comptroller of
the Treasury of the State of Tennessee. Major categories are at the
department level (examples of General Fund major categories: County
Commission, Board of Equalization, County Mayor/Executive, County
Attorney, etc.). Management may make revisions within major categories,
but only the County Commission may transfer appropriations between major
categories. During the year, several supplementary appropriations were
necessary.

The county's budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with GAAP, except
instances in which encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures. The
difference between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis is presented on the
face of each budgetary schedule.

Unrestricted Net Assets Deficit/Unreserved Fund Balance Deficit

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund (enterprise fund) had a deficit in unrestricted
net assets of $1,245,015 at June 30, 2010. This deficit primarily resulted from
the recognition of a liability of $1,336,118 in the financial statements for
costs associated with closing the county’s landfill and monitoring the landfill
for 30 years after its closure. Generally accepted accounting principles and
state statutes require that such costs be reflected in the financial statements.

The discretely presented School Federal Projects Fund had a deficit in
unreserved fund balance of $353,500 at June 30, 2010. This deficit resulted
from expenditures exceeding grant funds requested and received.

The discretely presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority’s General
Fund had a deficit in unreserved fund balance of $302,243 at June 30, 2010.
This deficit resulted from the recognition of the unperformed portion of a
construction contract totaling $335,008 being reserved as an encumbrance in
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the financial statements. Funding for these future expenditures is expected
to be received from grants.

Generally accepted accounting principles require unperformed contracts to be
reflected as a reservation (encumbrance) of fund balance. If unperformed
portions of the contract had not been reserved as an encumbrance of the fund
balance in the financial statements, the Cumberland County Railroad
Authority Fund would have reflected a fund balance of $32,765. The following
statement presents the financial condition of the Cumberland County
Railroad Authority Fund at June 30, 2010, if the unperformed portion of the
contract had not been reflected as a reservation of the fund balance:

Fund Balance

Unreserved:
Undesignated $ 32,765
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010, Restated $ 32,765

Appropriations Exceeded Available Funds

The budget and subsequent amendments approved by the County
Commission for the Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund resulted in appropriations
exceeding estimated available funding by $2,884. Sound budgetary
principles dictate that appropriations be held within estimated available
funding.

Prior-year Cash Shortage

The audit of Cumberland County for the 2008-09 year reported a cash
shortage of $8,893.20 in the School Maintenance Department as of
November 4, 2009. This cash shortage resulted from a recycling company
paying $11,175.69 in cash to Maintenance Department truck drivers for the
sale of scrap metal. The truck drivers remitted the cash to the maintenance
supervisor; however, the maintenance supervisor could not document the use
of $8,893.20 from the sale of the scrap metal. This shortage has been
reviewed with the district attorney general.

Expenditures Exceeded Appropriations

General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations approved by the
Railroad Authority Board by $243,098. Such overexpenditures are a violation
of state statute.
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IV.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A.

Deposits and Investments

Cumberland County, the Cumberland County School Department, and the
Cumberland County Railroad Authority participate in an internal cash and
investment pool through the Office of Trustee. The county trustee is the
treasurer of the county and in this capacity is responsible for receiving,
disbursing, and investing most county funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool
is displayed on the balance sheets or statements of net assets as Equity in
Pooled Cash and Investments. Cash reflected on the balance sheets or
statements of net assets represents nonpooled amounts held separately by
individual funds.

Deposits

Legal Provisions. All deposits with financial institutions must be secured
by one of two methods. One method involves financial institutions that
participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the state treasurer.
Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public fund
accounts for the State of Tennessee and its political subdivisions. The amount
of collateral required to secure these public deposits must equal at least
105 percent of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collateral
securities required to be pledged by the participating banks to protect their
public fund accounts are pledged to the state treasurer on behalf of the bank
collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged
in the aggregate rather than against each account. The members of the pool
may be required by agreement to pay an assessment to cover any deficiency.
Under this additional assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by
the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk disclosure.

For deposits with financial institutions that do not participate in the bank
collateral pool, state statutes require that all deposits be collateralized with
collateral whose market value is equal to 105 percent of the uninsured
amount of the deposits. The collateral must be placed by the depository bank
in an escrow account in a second bank for the benefit of the county.

Investments

Legal Provisions. Counties are authorized to make direct investments in
bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies; deposits at state
and federal chartered banks and savings and loan associations; bonds of any
state or political subdivision rated A or higher by any nationally recognized
rating service; nonconvertible debt securities of certain federal government
sponsored enterprises; and the county’s own legally issued bonds or notes.
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These investments may not have a maturity greater than two years. The
county may make investments with longer maturities if various restrictions
set out in state law are followed. Counties are also authorized to make
investments in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool and in repurchase
agreements. Repurchase agreements must be approved by the state
Comptroller’s Office and executed in accordance with procedures established
by the State Funding Board. Securities purchased under a repurchase
agreement must be obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies. When repurchase
agreements are executed, the purchase of the securities must be priced at
least two percent below the fair value of the securities on the day of purchase.

Investment Balances. As of June 30, 2010, Cumberland County had the
following investments carried at cost. All investments are in the State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool. Separate disclosures concerning pooled
investments cannot be made for Cumberland County, the discretely
presented Cumberland County School Department, and the discretely
presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority since all pool their
deposits and investments through the county trustee.

Investment Maturities Cost

State Treasurer's Investment Pool Daily $ 243,607

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. State statutes limit
the maturities of certain investments as previously disclosed. Cumberland
County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to
an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State statutes limit the ratings
of certain investments as previously explained. Cumberland County has no
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of
June 30, 2010, Cumberland County’s investment in the State Treasurer’s
Investment Pool was unrated.

Derivative Instruments

At June 30, 2010, Cumberland County had the following derivative
instruments outstanding:
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Original
Notional Effective Maturity
Instrument Type Objective Amount Date Date Terms

$7.5M Swap Pay fixed Variable to $ 7,500,000 7-31-08 6-1-20 Pay 3.9%

interest  synthetic fixed receive 63%
rate swap rate swap of LIBOR
$6.95M Swap Pay fixed Variable to 6,950,000 7-31-08 6-1-27 Pay 4.13%
interest  synthetic fixed receive 63%
rate swap rate swap of LIBOR
$10M Swap Pay fixed Variable to 10,000,000 11-20-08 6-1-39 Pay 3.293%
interest  synthetic fixed receive 59%
rate swap rate swap of LIBOR

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments
outstanding at June 30, 2010, classified by type, and the changes in fair value
of such derivative instruments for the year then ended as reported in the
2010 financial statements are as follows:

6-30-10
Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2010 Notional
Type Classification Amount Classification Amount Amount
Governmental Activities:
Cash Flow Hedges:
Pay-fixed interest
rate swaps:
$7.56M Swap Deferred $ (167,726) Debt $ (664,977) $ 7,500,000
Outflow
$6.95M Swap Deferred (298,664) Debt (1,230,989) 6,650,000
Outflow
$10M Swap Deferred (459,253) Debt (1,301,645) 10,000,000
Outflow
Totals $  (925,643) $ (3,197,611) $ 24,150,000

Derivative Swap Agreement Detail

$7.5M Swap:

Under its loan agreement, the Public Building Authority of Sevier County,
Tennessee, at the request of the county, entered into an interest rate swap
agreement for all of the outstanding Local Government Improvement Bonds,
Series IV-F-2.

Objective of the interest rate swap. To protect against the potential of
rising interest rates and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate
debt, the county requested the authority, on its behalf, to enter into an
interest rate swap in connection with its $7.5 million Series IV-F-2
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variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the
county’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The
Series IV-F-2 bonds have since been refunded with a portion of the proceeds
of the Series E-3-A bonds, and the interest rate swap is now associated with
the Series E-3-A bonds.

Terms. Under the swap, the authority pays the counterparty a fixed
payment of 3.9 percent and receives a variable payment computed as
63 percent of the five-year London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The
swap has a notional amount of $7.5 million, and the associated variable-rate
bond has a $7.5 million principal amount. At no time will the notional
amount on the interest rate swap agreement exceed the outstanding
principal of the Series E-3-A Bonds. The bonds’ variable-rates have
historically approximated the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association Index™ (the “SIFMA”). The bonds and the related swap
agreement mature on June 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2010, rates were as
follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 3.90 %
Variable payment from counterparty % of LIBOR (1.70)
Net interest rate swap payments 220 %
Variable-rate bond payments 0.25
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 245 %

Fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a negative fair value of
$664,977. The negative fair value of the swap may be countered by reductions
in total interest payments required under the variable-rate bond, creating
lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the government’s variable-rate
bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a
corresponding fair value increase. The fair value model calculates future cash
flows by projecting forward rates and then discounts those cash flows at their
present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2010, the county was not exposed to credit risk
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, if interest rates change
and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the county would be exposed
to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The swap
counterparty, Morgan Keegan Financial Products, was rated A+ by Standard
& Poor’s as of June 30, 2010, with its Credit Support Provider, Deutsche
Bank, rated Aa3/A+/AA- by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the county to basis risk should

the rate on the bonds increase to above 63 percent of LIBOR, thus increasing
the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rate on
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the bonds to be below 63 percent of LIBOR, then the synthetic rate on the
bonds will decrease.

Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap
Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes standard termination
events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement includes an “additional termination provision.” The authority or
the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate
bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the authority would be liable
to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. Likewise, if
the swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be
liable to the authority for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2010, debt service
requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming
current interest rates remain the same, for their term were as follows. As
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will
vary.

Year Net Interest

Ending Variable Rate Bonds Rate Swap

June 30 Principal Interest Payment Total
2011 $ 475,000 $ 17,625 $ 155,296 $ 647,921
2012 495,000 16,438 144,833 656,271
2013 520,000 15,200 133,929 669,129
2014 550,000 13,900 122,475 686,375
2015 575,000 12,525 110,359 697,884
2016-2020 4,435,000 38,125 335,924 4,809,049
Total $ 7,050,000 $ 113,813 $ 1,002,816 $ 8,166,629
$6.95M Swap:

Under its loan agreement, the Public Building Authority of Sevier County,
Tennessee, at the request of the county, entered into an interest rate swap

agreement for all of the outstanding Local Government Improvement Bonds,
Series IV-H-2.

Objective of the interest rate swap. To protect against the potential of
rising interest rates and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate
debt, the county requested the authority, on its behalf, to enter into an
interest rate swap in connection with its $6.95 million Series IV-H-2
variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the
county’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The
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Series IV-H-2 bonds have since been refunded with a portion of the proceeds
of the Series E-3-A bonds and the interest rate swap is now associated with
the Series E-3-A bonds.

Terms. Under the swap, the authority pays the counterparty a fixed
payment of 4.13 percent and receives a variable payment computed as
63 percent of the five-year London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The
swap has a notional amount of $6,650,000, and the associated variable-rate
bond has a $6,650,000 principal amount. At no time will the notional amount
on the interest rate swap agreement exceed the outstanding principal of the
Series E-3-A Bonds. The bonds’ variable-rates have historically approximated
the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Index™
“SIFMA”). The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on
June 1, 2027. As of June 30, 2010, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:

Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 4.13 %
Variable payment from counterparty % of LIBOR (1.70)
Net interest rate swap payments 2.43 %

Variable-rate bond payments 0.25
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 2.68 %

Fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a negative fair value of
$1,230,989. The negative fair value of the swap may be countered by
reductions in total interest payments required under the variable-rate bond,
creating lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the government’s
variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a
corresponding fair value increase. The fair value model calculates future cash
flows by projecting forward rates, and then discounts those cash flows at
their present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2010, the county was not exposed to credit risk
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, if interest rates change
and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the county would be exposed
to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The swap
counterparty, Morgan Keegan Financial Products, was rated A+ by Standard
& Poor’s as of June 30, 2010, with its Credit Support Provider, Deutsche
Bank, rated Aa3/A+/AA- by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the county to basis risk should
BMA increase to above 63 percent of LIBOR, thus increasing the synthetic
rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the BMA to be below
63 percent of LIBOR, then the synthetic rate on the bonds will decrease.
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Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap
Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes standard termination
events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement includes an “additional termination provision.” The authority or
the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate
bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the authority would be liable
to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. Likewise, if
the swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be
liable to the authority for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2010, debt service
requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming
current interest rates remain the same, for their term were as follows. As
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will
vary.

Year Net Interest

Ending Variable Rate Bonds Rate Swap

June 30 Principal Interest Payment Total
2011 $ 0$ 16,625 $ 161,780 $ 178,405
2012 0 16,625 161,780 178,405
2013 0 16,625 161,780 178,405
2014 0 16,625 161,780 178,405
2015 0 16,625 161,780 178,405
2016-2020 0 83,125 808,899 892,024
2021-2025 4,365,000 64,150 624,251 5,053,401
2026-2027 2,285,000 8,650 84,174 2,377,824
Total $ 6,650,000 $ 239,050 $ 2,326,224 $ 9,215,274
$10M Swap:

Under its loan agreement, the Public Building Authority of Sevier County,
Tennessee, at the request of the county, entered into an interest rate swap

agreement for all of the outstanding Local Government Improvement Bonds,
Series VI-C-2.

Objective of the interest rate swap. To protect against the potential of
rising interest rates and to balance its mixture of variable and fixed rate
debt, the county requested the authority, on its behalf, to enter into an
interest rate swap in connection with its $10 million Series VI-C-2
variable-rate bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the
county’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate. The
Series VI-C-2 bonds have since been refunded with a portion of the proceeds
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of the Series VII-B-2 bonds and the interest rate swap is now associated with
the Series VII-B-2 bonds.

Terms. Under the swap, the authority pays the counterparty a fixed
payment of 3.293 percent and receives a variable payment computed as
59 percent of the five-year London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The
swap has a notional amount of $10 million, and the associated variable-rate
bond has a $10 million principal amount. At no time will the notional amount
on the interest rate swap agreement exceed the outstanding principal of the
Series VII-B-2 bonds. The bonds’ variable-rates have historically
approximated the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
Index™ (“SIFMA”). The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on
June 1, 2039. As of June 30, 2010, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:

Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 3.293 %
Variable payment from counterparty % of LIBOR (1.589)
Net interest rate swap payments 1.704 %

Variable-rate bond payments 1.700
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 3.404 %

Fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a negative fair value of
$1,301,645. The negative fair value of the swap may be countered by
reductions in total interest payments required under the variable-rate bond,
creating lower synthetic rates. Because the rates on the government’s
variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a
corresponding fair value increase. The fair value model calculates future cash
flows by projecting forward rates, and then discounts those cash flows at
their present value.

Credit risk. As of June 30, 2010, the county was not exposed to credit risk
because the swap had a negative fair value. However, if interest rates change
and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the county would be exposed
to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The swap
counterparty, Morgan Keegan Financial Products, was rated A+ by Standard
& Poor’s as of June 30, 2010, with its Credit Support Provider, Deutsche
Bank, rated Aa3/A+/AA- by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis risk. As noted above, the swap exposes the county to basis risk should
the rate on the bonds increase to above 59 percent of LIBOR, thus increasing
the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rate on
the bonds to be below 59 percent of LIBOR, then the synthetic rate on the
bonds will decrease.

48



Termination risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap
Dealers Association Master Agreement, which includes standard termination
events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement includes an “additional termination provision.” The authority or
the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate
bond would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the authority would be liable
to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. Likewise, if
the swap has a positive fair value at termination, the counterparty would be
liable to the authority for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. As of June 30, 2010, debt service
requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming
current interest rates remain the same, for their term were as follows. As
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will
vary.

Year Net Interest

Ending Variable Rate Bonds Rate Swap

June 30 Principal Interest Payment Total
2011 $ 0$ 170,000 $ 170,354 $ 340,354
2012 0 170,000 170,354 340,354
2013 0 170,000 170,354 340,354
2014 0 170,000 170,354 340,354
2015 0 170,000 170,354 340,354
2016-2020 0 850,000 851,770 1,701,770
2021-2025 0 850,000 851,770 1,701,770
2026-2030 0 850,000 851,770 1,701,770
2031-2035 4,525,000 739,500 741,040 6,005,540
2036-2039 5,475,000 238,425 238,921 5,952,346
Total $ 10,000,000 $ 4,377,925 $ 4,387,041 $ 18,764,966
Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:
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Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

Restated
Balance Balance
7-1-09 Increases Decreases 6-30-10

Capital Assets Not

Depreciated:
Land $ 1,318,713 $ 0$ 0 $ 1,318,713
Construction in

Progress 16,472,254 5,077,220  (15,507,215) 6,042,259
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated $ 17,790,967 $ 5,077,220 $ (15,507,215) $ 7,360,972
Capital Assets Depreciated:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 10,586,064 $ 13,993,534 $ (12,000) $ 24,567,598
Roads and Bridges 34,757,783 263,215 (15,368) 35,005,630
Other Capital Assets 9,424,294 2,067,940 (621,790) 10,870,444
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated $ 54,768,141 $ 16,324,689 $ (649,158) $ 70,443,672
Less Accumulated

Depreciation For:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 3,742,997 $§ 334,894 $ (10,800) $ 4,067,091
Roads and Bridges 10,862,793 766,910 (4,235) 11,625,468
Other Capital Assets 5,487,276 782,538 (522,304) 5,747,510
Total Accumulated

Depreciation $ 20,093,066 $ 1,884,342 $ (5637,339) $ 21,440,069
Total Capital Assets

Depreciatied, Net $ 34,675,075 $ 14,440,347 $ (111,819) $ 49,003,603
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 52,466,042 $ 19,517,567 $ (15,619,034) $ 56,364,575

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as
follows:
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Governmental Activies:

General Government
Finance

Administration of Justice
Public Safety

Public Health and Welfare

Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services

Highways/Public Works

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Capital Assets Not Depreciated:
Land
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated

Capital Assets Depreciated:

Landfill Facilities and
Development

Buildings and Improvements

Other Capital Assets

Total Capital Assets Depreciated

Less Accumulated
Depreciation For:
Landfill Facilities and
Development
Buildings and Improvements
Other Capital Assets
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets
Depreciated, Net

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, Net

$ 227,074

1,397

4,914

520,912

276,641

38,659

814,745

$ 1,884,342

Balance Balance
7-1-09 Increases 6-30-10

$ 46,840 $ 03 46,840
$ 46,840 $ 03 46,840
$ 3,509,688 $ 0 $ 3,509,688
13,825 0 13,825
269,479 0 269,479

$ 3,792,992 $ 0 $ 3,792,992
$ 2,948,388 $ 442,923 $ 3,391,311
10,883 691 11,574
183,886 5,665 189,551

$ 3,143,157 $ 449,279 $ 3,592,436
$ 649,835 $ (449,279) $ 200,556
$ 696,675 $ (449,279) $ 247,396

Depreciation of $449,279 was recorded by the Solid Waste Disposal Fund.
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Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
7-1-09 Increases Decreases 6-30-10

Capital Assets Not

Depreciated:
Land $ 2,088,454 §$ 0$ 0 $ 2,088,454
Construction in

Progress 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated $ 2,088,454 $ 0$ 0 $§ 2,088,454
Capital Assets Depreciated:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 77,388,777 $ 113,033 $ 0 $ 77,501,810
Infrastructure 1,415,162 0 0 1,415,162
Other Capital Assets 7,199,694 533,642 (34,241) 7,699,095
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated $ 86,003,633 $ 646,675 $ (34,241) $ 86,616,067
Less Accumulated

Depreciation For:
Buildings and

Improvements $ 15,202,553 $ 1,390,662 $ 0 $ 16,593,215
Infrastructure 387,720 51,144 0 438,864
Other Capital Assets 4,044,292 527,998 (27,860) 4,544,430
Total Accumulated

Depreciation $ 19,634,665 $ 1,969,804 $ (27,860) $ 21,576,509
Total Capital Assets

Depreciatied, Net $ 66,369,068 $ (1,323,129) $§ (6,381) $§ 65,039,558
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 68,457,522 $§ (1,323,129) $§ (6,381) $ 67,128,012

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the discretely presented
Cumberland County School Department as follows:
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Governmental Activies:

Instruction $ 1,607,265
Support Services 311,525
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 51,014

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 1,969,804

D. Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Due to/from Other Funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Primary Government:
General Nonmajor governmental $ 58,968

Discretely Presented School
Department:

General Purpose School School Federal Projects 19,341
These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur and
payments between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers:

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010, consisted of the
following amounts:

Primary Government

Transfers In

Solid
Waste
General Disposal

Transfers Out Fund Fund
General Debt Service Fund $ 5,000,000 $ 0
General Fund 0 1,100,000
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund 0 425,000
Total $ 5,000,000 $ 1,525,000
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Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Transfer In

General
Purpose
School
Transfer Out Fund
School Federal Projects Fund $ 28,208

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget
requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend
them and to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

The county made a one-time transfer of $5,000,000 from the General Debt
Service Fund to the General Fund for jail construction.

Long-term Debt

Primary Government

General Obligation Notes and Other Loans

The county issues other loans to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. In addition, other loans have been
issued to refund other loans. Capital outlay notes are also issued to fund
capital facilities and other capital outlay purchases, such as equipment.

Capital outlay notes and other loans are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the government. Capital outlay notes and other loans
outstanding were issued for original terms of up to seven years for notes and
up to 31 years for other loans. Repayment terms are generally structured
with increasing amounts of principal maturing as interest requirements
decrease over the term of the debt. All other loans and notes included in
long-term debt as of June 30, 2010, will be retired from the General Debt
Service Fund.

Capital outlay notes and other loans outstanding as of June 30, 2010, for
governmental activities are as follows:
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Original

Interest Amount Balance
Type Rate of Issue 6-30-10
Capital Outlay Notes 0to2.75 % $ 3,215,858 $§ 2,222,212
Other Loans Variable 5,100,000 5,100,000
Other Loans 3to6 12,865,000 11,965,000
Other Loans - Synthetic
Fixed by Swap .25 to 1.7 48,915,000 47,395,000

Cumberland County entered into various loan agreements with the Sevier
County Public Building Authority and the Blount County Public Building
Authority (PBAs) to finance various capital projects for Cumberland County
and the discretely presented Cumberland County School Department. Under
the loan agreements, the PBAs issued revenue bonds and made the proceeds
available for loan to Cumberland County. In addition to repaying the loans,
the county pays various other fees (trustee, debt remarketing, etc.) in
connection with these loans. The following table summarizes loan agreements

outstanding at June 30, 2010:

Approximate
Original Interest Fee
Amount Outstanding Rates Rates
of Loan Principal Interest as of as of
Description Agreement 6-30-10 Type 6-30-10 6-30-10
Sevier County PBA:
Series V-E-1 $ 10,365,000 $ 9,465,000 Fixed 3to4.5 % 0 %
Series VII-B-2 28,300,000 27,590,000  Synthetic 1.7 1.051
Fixed
by Swap
Series VII-F-1 5,100,000 5,100,000  Variable 1.7 1.526
Blount County PBA:
Series B-13-A 1,750,000 1,750,000 Fixed 5.15to 6 0
Series E-3-A 20,615,000 19,805,000  Synthetic 0.25 0.73
Fixed
by Swap
Series B-20-A 750,000 750,000 Fixed 4.25 tob 0

The annual requirements to amortize all capital outlay notes and other loans
outstanding as of June 30, 2010, including interest payments and other loan
fees, are presented in the following tables:
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Year Ending Notes

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 1,007,404 $ 54,602 $ 1,062,006
2012 607,404 29,068 636,472
2013 607,404 14,534 621,938
Total $ 2,222212 $§ 98204 $ 2,320,416
Year Ending Other Loans

June 30 Principal Interest Other Fees Total
2011 $ 1,890,000 $ 1,124,137 $ 512,373 $ 3,526,510
2012 2,050,000 1,097,708 501,496 3,649,204
2013 2,100,000 1,062,635 490,290 3,652,925
2014 1,725,000 1,024,987 478,901 3,228,888
2015 1,805,000 993,813 471,893 3,270,706
2016-2020 10,345,000 4,413,400 2,240,477 16,998,877
2021-2025 12,125,000 3,637,853 1,940,677 17,603,530
2026-2030 13,270,000 2,337,755 1,468,572 17,076,327
2031-2035 10,605,000 1,230,715 767,426 12,603,141
2036-2039 8,545,000 371,875 229,906 9,146,781
Total $ 64,460,000 $ 17,194,878 $ 9,102,011 $ 90,756,889

There 1s $11,867,470 available in the General Debt Service Fund to service
long-term debt. Debt per capita, including other loans and notes, totaled
$1,264, based on the 2000 federal census.

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Balance, July 1, 2009
Additions
Deductions

Balance, June 30, 2010

Balance Due Within One Year
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$ 993,616 $ 63,520,000
1,677,000 7,790,000
(448,404) (6,850,000)
$ 2,222,212 $ 64,460,000
$ 1,007,404 $ 1,890,000




Governmental Activities: (Cont.)

Other
Compensated Postemployment
Absences Benefits

Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 759,649 $ 44,037
Additions 627,964 155,105
Deductions (563,978) (42,737)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 823,635 $ 156,405
Balance Due Within One Year $ 576,545 $ 0
Analysis of Noncurrent Libilities Presented on Exhibit A:
Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2010 $ 67,662,252
Less: Due Within One Year (3,473,949)
Add: Unamortized Premium on Debt 71,572
Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in

More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 64,259,875

Compensated absences will be paid from the employing funds, primarily the
General and Highway/Public Works funds.

Advance Refunding

On November 19, 2009, Cumberland County advance refunded an other loan
with a separate other loan issue. The county issued a $5,100,000 other loan to
provide resources to refund a $5,000,000 other loan. As a result, the refunded
other loans are considered defeased, and the liability has been removed from
the county’s long-term debt. As a result of the advance refunding, total debt
service payments over the next 22 years cannot be calculated due to the
variable interest rates on both the refunded and the new other loan issues.

Cumberland County Solid Waste Disposal Fund (Enterprise Fund)

Long-term liability activity for the Solid Waste Disposal Fund (enterprise
fund) for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:
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Business-type Activities:

Landfill
Closure/
Postclosure
Care Costs
Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 1,662,652
Additions 398,538
Deductions (725,072)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 1,336,118
Balance Due Within One Year $ 244,095

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability for the discretely presented Cumberland County School
Department for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Other
Compensated Postemployment
Absences Benefits

Balance, July 1, 2009 $ 80,521 $ 753,445
Additions 0 1,152,790
Deductions 0 (657,204)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 80,521 $ 1,249,031
Balance Due Within One Year $ 80,521 $ 0
Analysis of Noncurrent Libilities Presented on Exhibit A:
Total Noncurrent Liabilities, June 30, 2010 $ 1,329,552
Less: Due Within One Year (80,521)
Noncurrent Liabilities - Due in

More Than One Year - Exhibit A $ 1,249,031

Compensated absences will be paid from the employing funds, primarily the
General Purpose School and School Federal Projects funds. The county was
unable to provide a schedule of compensated absences at June 30, 2010;
therefore, prior year compensated absences balance was included on the
government-wide statements.
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On-Behalf Payments — Discretely Presented Cumberland County
School Department

The State of Tennessee pays health insurance premiums for retired teachers
on-behalf of the Cumberland County School Department. These payments
are made by the state to the Local Education Group Insurance Plan and the
Medicare Supplement Plan. Both of these plans are administered by the
State of Tennessee and reported in the state’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Payments by the state to the Local Education Group
Insurance Plan and the Medicare Supplement Plan for the year ended
June 30, 2010, were $220,078 and $28,579, respectively. The School
Department has recognized these on-behalf payments as revenues and
expenditures in the General Purpose School Fund.

V. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

Primary Government

The county is exposed to various risks related to general liability, property,
casualty, and workers’ compensation losses. The county’s risk of loss relating
to general liability, property, casualty, and workers’ compensation is covered
by participation in the Local Government Property and Casualty Fund
(LGPCF) and the Local Government Workers’ Compensation Fund (LGWCF),
which are public entity risk pools established by the Tennessee County
Services Association, an association of member counties. The county pays
annual premiums to these pools for their general liability, property, casualty,
and workers’ compensation insurance coverage. The creation of these pools
provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums. The LGPCF
and LGWCF reinsure through commercial insurance companies for claims
exceeding $100,000 for each insured event.

The county is a member of the Local Government Group Insurance Fund
(LGGIF), a public entity risk pool established to provide a program of
health insurance coverage for employees of local governments and
quasi-governmental entities that was established for the primary purpose of
providing services for or on behalf of state and local governments. In
accordance with Section 8-27-207, Tennessee Code Annotated, all local
governments and quasi-governmental entities described above are eligible to
participate. The LGGIF is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State of Tennessee, but the state does not retain any risk
for losses by this fund. The state statute provides for the LGGIF to be
self-sustaining through member premiums.

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

The School Department participates in the Tennessee Risk Management Trust
(TN-RMT), which is a public entity risk pool created under the auspices of the
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Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act to provide governmental
insurance coverage. The School Department pays annual premiums
to the TN-RMT for its general liability, property, casualty, and
workers’ compensation insurance coverage. The creation of the TN-RMT
provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums.

The School Department participates in the Local Education Group Insurance
Fund (LEGIF), a public entity risk pool established to provide a program of
health insurance coverage for employees of local education agencies. In
accordance with Section 8-27-301, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), all local
education agencies are eligible to participate. The LEGIF is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Tennessee, but the
state does not retain any risk for losses by this fund. Section 8-27-303, TCA,
provides for the LEGIF to be self-sustaining through member premiums.

Accounting Changes

During the year, Cumberland County adopted provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 51, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets; and Statement No. 53, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments became effective for the
year ended June 30, 2010.

GASB Statement No. 51 establishes accounting and financial reporting
requirements for intangible assets. Intangible assets have three
characteristics: lack of physical substance; nonfinancial in nature; and a
useful life that extends beyond a single reporting period. Assets that have
these characteristics and are identifiable to the government should be
recorded as capital assets and amortized over their useful lives. Easements,
water rights, patents, and computer software are examples of intangible
assets that should be recognized under GASB Statement No. 51.
Cumberland County had no assets that met the definition of intangible assets
at June 30, 2010. However, it is reasonably expected that Cumberland
County may acquire intangible assets in subsequent years.

GASB Statement No. 53 addresses the recognition, measurement, and
disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by
county governments. Derivative instruments are financial arrangements
used by governments as investments; hedges against identified financial
risks; or to lower the costs of borrowings. Interest rate swaps and locks,
options, swaptions, forward contracts, and futures contracts are among the
commonly used types of derivatives mentioned in GASB Statement No. 53.
Derivative instruments associated with fluctuating financial and commodity
prices result in changing cash flows and fair values that can be used as
effective risk management or investment tools. For the same reasons,
derivative instruments can expose governments to significant risks and
liabilities. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 53 are intended to help
users of financial information evaluate the effectiveness and associated risks
involved with Cumberland County’s derivative transactions. GASB
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Statement No. 53 requires most derivatives to be reported at fair value in the
Statement of Net Assets. Changes in fair value for derivative instruments
that are intended for investment purposes or that are reported like
investment derivative instruments because of ineffectiveness are reported as
investment revenues in the Statement of Activities. Alternatively, the
changes in fair value of derivative instruments that are classified as hedging
(i.e., effective) derivative instruments are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets as deferrals. Note IV.E. describes the derivative transactions of
Cumberland County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Subsequent Events

On July 11, 2010, the county entered into two loans for $500,000 at
zero percent interest and $3 million at a rate of 2.5 percent interest for
energy efficiency projects at the School Department. In addition to these
loans, the County Commission agreed to issue capital outlay notes totaling
$484,996 to provide additional funding for these projects. These notes have
not been issued as of the date of this report.

On August 31, 2010, Brock Hill left the Office of County Mayor and was
succeeded by Kenneth Carey, Jr., Wendell Houston left the Office of Road
Superintendent and was succeeded by Scott Blalock, and Carolyn Turner left
the Office of Trustee and was succeeded by Kim Wyatt.

Contingent Liabilities

The county is involved in several pending lawsuits. The county attorney
estimates that the potential claims against the county not covered by
insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the
county’s financial statements.

Landfill Closure/Postclosure Care Costs

Cumberland County has active permits on file with the state Department of
Environment and Conservation for a sanitary landfill and a demolition
landfill. The county has provided financial assurances for estimated closure
and postclosure liabilities as required by the State of Tennessee. These
financial assurances are on file with the Department of Environment and
Conservation.

State and federal laws and regulations require Cumberland County to place a
final cover on its sanitary landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
30 years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be
paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the
county reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each
balance sheet date. The $1,336,118 reported as landfill closure and
postclosure care liability at June 30, 2010, represents the cumulative amount
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reported to date based on the use of 98 percent of the estimated capacity of
the landfill. The county will recognize the remaining estimated costs of
closure and postclosure care of $42,065 as the remaining estimated capacity
is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all
closure and postclosure care in 2010. Actual costs may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

Joint Venture

Cumberland County entered into an agreement with the counties of Morgan
and Roane to establish an Industrial Development Board to purchase land for
the development of a joint industrial park. Cumberland, Morgan, and Roane
counties jointly own the board. The agreement established a nine-member
board with each county appointing three members and being responsible for
one-third of the entity’s funding. Cumberland County contributed $750,000
to the board for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Retirement Commitments

Employees

Plan Description

Employees of Cumberland County are members of the Political Subdivision
Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high
five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to
retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of
service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the
age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years
of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment.
There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident
or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.
Members joining the system after July 1, 1979, become vested after five years
of service, and members joining prior to July 1, 1979, were vested after four
years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in
Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are
amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as
Cumberland County participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are
liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their
plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision
unless approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the PSPP. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury Department,
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Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor, Andrew Jackson Building,
Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS.

Funding Policy

Cumberland County requires employees to contribute five percent of earnable
compensation. The county is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was
8.87 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan
members 1s set by state statute. The contribution requirement for
Cumberland County is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board
of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2010, Cumberland County’s annual pension cost
of $1,441,225 to TCRS was equal to the county’s required and actual
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include
(a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a
year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent
(graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion
attributable to the effects of inflation on salaries), (c) projected 3.5 percent
annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (d) projected
postretirement increases of three percent annually. The actuarial value of
assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term
volatility in the market value of total investments over a five-year period.
Cumberland County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized
as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization
period at July 1, 2007, was eight years. An actuarial valuation was performed
as of July 1, 2009, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2010.

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6-30-10 $1,441,225 100% $0
6-30-09 1,449,228 100 0
6-30-08 1,404,399 100 0

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
84.19 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$38.61 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $32.51 million, resulting
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in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $6.1 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$16.43 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
37.14 percent.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

The TCRS uses the frozen entry age cost method to calculate the annual
required contribution. Effective July 1, 2009, the TCRS reestablished the

unfunded accrued liabilities for all groups.

School Teachers

Plan Description

The Cumberland County School Department contributes to the State
Employees, Teachers, and Higher Education Employees Pension Plan
(SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS).
TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits to
plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula
using the member’s high five-year average salary and years of service.
Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or
at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available
to vested members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of
service. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment.
There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident
or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.
Members joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979, are vested after five years
of service. Members joining prior to July 1, 1979, are vested after four years
of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8,
Chapters 34-37 of Tennessee Code Annotated. State statutes are amended by
the Tennessee General Assembly. A cost of living adjustment (COLA) is
provided to retirees each July based on the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) during the previous calendar year. No COLA is
granted if the CPI increases less than one-half percent. The annual COLA 1is
capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the
SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10th Floor, Andrew
Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
www.tn.gov/treasury/ters/Schools.
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Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute five percent of their
salaries to the plan. The employer contribution rate for the Cumberland
County School Department is established at an actuarially determined rate.
The employer rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, was 6.42 percent
of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirement for the
Cumberland County School Department is established and may be amended
by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer’s contributions to TCRS for the
years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, were $1,456,941, $1,424,630, and
$1,355,024, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

Cumberland County and the Cumberland County School Department
participate in the state-administered Local Government Group Insurance
Plan and the Local Education Group Insurance Plan for healthcare benefits.
For accounting purposes, the plans are agent multiple-employer defined
benefit OPEB plans. Benefits are established and amended by an insurance
committee created by Section 8-27-207, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), for
local governments and Section 8-27-302, TCA, for teachers. Prior to reaching
the age of 65, all members have the option of choosing a preferred provider
organization (PPO), point of service (POS), or health maintenance
organization (HMO) plan for healthcare benefits. Subsequent to age 65,
members who are also in the state’s retirement system may participate in a
state-administered Medicare Supplement Plan that does not include
pharmacy. The plans are reported in the State of Tennessee Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The CAFR is available on the state’s
website at http://tn.gov/finance/act/cafr.html.

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the insurance committee. The plans are self-insured and
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the
participants. Claims liabilities of the plans are periodically computed using
actuarial and statistical techniques to establish premium rates. The
employers in the plans develop a contribution policy in terms of subsidizing
active employees or retired employees’ premiums since the committee is not
prescriptive on that issue. The state does not provide a subsidy for local
government participants; however, the state does provide a partial subsidy to
Local Education Agency pre-65 teachers and a full subsidy based on years of
service for post-65 teachers in the Medicare Supplement Plan. The required
contribution rate for retirees ranges from ten to 55 percent based on the
years of service. During the year ended June 30, 2010, the county and the
discretely presented School Department contributed $42,737 and $657,204,
respectively, for postemployment benefits.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Local Local
Government Education

Group Group

Plan Plan
ARC $ 155,000 $ 1,151,000
Interest on the NPO 1,982 33,905
Adjustment to the ARC (1,877) (32,115)
Annual OPEB cost $ 155,105 $ 1,152,790
Amount of contribution (42,737) (657,204)
Increase/decrease in NPO $ 112,368 $ 495,586
Net OPEB obligation, 7-1-09 44,037 753,445
Net OPEB obligation, 6-30-10 $ 156,405 $ 1,249,031

Percentage

Fiscal Annual of Annual Net OPEB
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Obligation
Ended Plans Cost Contributed at Year End
6-30-10 Local Government Group $ 155,105 28 % % 156,405
6-30-09 " 79,784 71 44,037
6-30-08 " 77,037 73 21,112
6-30-10 Local Education Group 1,152,790 57 1,249,031
6-30-09 " 1,025,000 59 753,445
6-30-08 " 1,013,000 67 337,183

The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Local Local
Government Education
Group Group
Plan Plan
Actuarial valuation date 7-1-09 7-1-09
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 1,110,000 $ 10,314,000
Actuarial value of plan assets $ 0 $ 0
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 1,110,000 $ 10,314,000
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0% 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 9,505,943 $ 25,818,060
UAAL as a % of covered payroll 11.68% 39.95%
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of
the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2009, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used, and the actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). The annual
healthcare cost trend rate for the Local Education Group Plan was four
percent for fiscal year 2010. The trend will rise to ten percent in fiscal year
2011 and then will be reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of five
percent by fiscal year 2021. The annual healthcare cost trend rate for the
Local Government Group Plan was three percent for fiscal year 2010. The
trend will rise to ten percent in fiscal year 2011 and then will be reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of five percent by fiscal year 2021. Both rates
include a three percent inflation assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis
over a 30-year period beginning with June 30, 2008.

Office of Central Accounting and Budgeting

Cumberland County operates under the provisions of the County Financial
Management System of 1981. This act provides for a central system of
accounting, budgeting, and purchasing for all county departments. The act
also provides for the creation of a Finance Department operated under the
direction of the finance director.

Purchasing Law

The County Financial Management System of 1981 provides for the finance
director or a deputy appointed by him to serve as the county purchasing
agent. All purchase orders are issued by the Finance Department. Purchases
exceeding $5,000 for the Office of County Mayor, the discretely presented
Cumberland County School Department, and the discretely presented
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Cumberland County Railroad Authority are required to be competitively bid.
Purchases exceeding $10,000 for the Office of Road Superintendent are
required to be competitively bid.

V. OTHER NOTES - DISCRETELY PRESENTED CUMBERLAND COUNTY

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT

A.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Cumberland County Emergency
Communications District have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied
to enterprise funds of governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1. Reporting Entity

The Cumberland County "911" Emergency Communications District
was organized in July 1990, under the authority of Title 7, Chapter 86,
Tennessee Code Annotated, to provide residents within the boundaries
of Cumberland County, Tennessee, with emergency 911 service as a
means of securing emergency services quickly and efficiently.

The County Commission of Cumberland County, Tennessee, is the
basic level of government, which has financial accountability and
control over certain activities related to the Cumberland County
Emergency Communications District. The County Commission
approves any issuance of debt by the district, authorizes adjustments
to the district's service charges, and appoints the nine-member board
of directors, which governs the district. The Cumberland County
Emergency Communications District is a component unit of
Cumberland County, Tennessee.

2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of
Presentation

The district’s financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned, and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred or
the economic asset is used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions
are recognized when the exchange takes place. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operations are included on the Statement of Net Assets. Net assets
(i.e., total assets net of total liabilities) are segregated into invested
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted for specified purposes;
and unrestricted components. The operating statement presents
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increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total
assets.

The district follows all pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board and has elected not to follow Financial
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued after
November 16, 1989.

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deposits and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents have original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are carried at cost. The district capitalizes net interest
cost as part of the cost of constructing capital assets.

Capital assets in service are depreciated using the straight-line
method at rates that will amortize costs over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 40
Vehicles, Equipment, Furniture,
and Fixtures 5to 10
Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets.
Such segregations are required by bond agreements and other
external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted
assets are so classified. The excess of restricted assets over current
liabilities will be first used for retirement of related long-term debt.
The remainder, if generated from earnings, is shown as restricted net
assets.
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Compensated Absences

The district’s policy provides that vacation time may be accumulated
and carried forward to the next year in an amount not to exceed
184 total hours. Any hours exceeding the 184-hours limit will be
converted to sick leave if not used prior to the end of the current
employment year. Upon termination of employment, an employee will
be entitled to payment of any unused vacation time, which
has accrued, up to 184 hours. Payment will be based upon the
employee’s daily rate of compensation at the time of termination. The
accumulated amount is charged to expense and corresponding liability
in the financial statements.

Long-term Debt and Costs

Long-term debt is reported at face value. Costs related to the issuance
of debt are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt issue.

Revenue and Expenses

The district distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with
the district’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the district are emergency telephone service charges
collected from telephone service providers and shared wireless
charges. Operating expenses include the cost of salaries and wages,
employee benefits, contracted services, materials and supplies, other
charges, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Net Assets

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
requires the classification of net assets into three components —
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt, Restricted, and
Unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of
net assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted — This component of net assets consists of constraints

placed on net assets use through external constraints imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
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or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c¢. Unrestricted net assets — This component of net assets consists of
net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,

it 1s the district’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

10. Budget

The Board of Commissioners legally adopts the budget in accordance
with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 7-86-120.

Deposits and Investments

Investment of district funds is restricted by State of Tennessee statutes to
include the following:

1) bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the United States or
other obligations guaranteed as to principal and
interest by the United States or any of its agencies;

2) certificates of deposit and other evidence of deposit at
Tennessee state and federally chartered banks and
savings and loans associations;

3) the State of Tennessee local government investment
pool;
4) obligations of the Unites States or its agencies under a

repurchase agreement, with certain conditions;

5) bonds rated A or higher by any nationally recognized
rating service of the State of Tennessee, bonds of any
county or municipal corporations of the State of
Tennessee (bonds of any road, levee, or drainage
district is expressly excluded), bonds of any other state
or political subdivision;

6) nonconvertible debt securities of the Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association,
Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Student Loan
Marketing Association provided such securities are
rated in the highest category by at least two nationally
recognized rating services; and
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7) the county’s own bonds or notes issued in accordance
with Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 9, Chapter 21.

The investment must have a maturity of not greater than two years or with
certain authorized approval up to five years.

At June 30, 2010, the district’s deposits consisted of the following:

June 30, 2010

Bank Carrying
Balance Value

First Bank - Operating Account $ 176,084 $ 175,521
Regions Bank - Certificate of Deposit 100,000 100,000
First National Bank of Tennessee:

Payroll Account 4,743 4,743

Certificate of Deposit 90,000 90,000
Highland Federal Savings and Loan:

Certificate of Deposit 100,000 100,000
Progressive Savings Bank:

Certificate of Deposit 200,000 200,000
Total Deposits $ 670,827 $ 670,264

The difference between the bank balance and the carrying amount is due to
outstanding checks and/or deposits in transit.

As of June 30, 2010, deposits in each bank are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for $250,000. In addition, First Bank and
Regions Bank are members of the State of Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool.
The Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool is a multiple financial institution
collateral pool in which member financial institutions holding public funds
pledge collateral securities. In the event any member financial institution
fails, the entire collateral pool becomes available to satisfy the claims of
governmental entities. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, Progressive
Savings Bank collateralized the district’s deposits in excess of the insured
amount by pledging securities of $100,000, which are held by Federal Home
Loan Bank of Cincinnati in the district’s name. The district’s deposits in
financial institutions were entirely insured or collateralized at June 30, 2010.

The district had no investments at June 30, 2010.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2010, consisted of funds due from the
following agencies:
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6-30-10
Volunteer First Services $ 10,746
Bledsoe Telephone Cooperative 188
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Tennessee 33,844
Miscellaneous Providers 3,067
Total $ 47,845
Changes in Capital Assets
A summary of changes in capital assets at June 30, 2010, follows:
Business-type Activities:
Balance Balance
7-1-09 Increases 6-30-10

Capital Assets Not

Depreciated:
Land 1,000,713 0$ 1,000,713
Construction in

Progress 117,238 813,340 930,578
Total Capital Assets

Not Depreciated 1,117,951 813,340 $ 1,931,291
Capital Assets Depreciated:
Building and Improvements 1,014,732 0$ 1,014,732
Office Equipment and Fixtures 48,711 1,451 50,162
Communications and Computer

Equipment 747,513 30,820 778,333
Vehicles 20,987 0 20,987
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated 1,831,943 32,271 $ 1,864,214
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Building and Improvements 111,185 25,851 $ 137,036
Office Equipment and Fixtures 35,288 5,026 40,314
Communications and Computer

Equipment 405,864 105,262 511,126
Vehicles 20,987 0 20,987
Total Accumuated Depreciation 573,324 136,139 $ 709,463
Net Capital Assets 1,258,619 (103,868) $ 1,154,751
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Long-term Debt

On November 17, 2004, the district obtained financing of $1 million through
the City of Crossville, from the Public Building Authority of the City of
Clarksville, Tennessee, Adjustable Rate Pooled Financing Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004 (Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund) to construct a new facility for
the Emergency Communications Center. The trustee calculates the loan rate
for each loan payment period based on interest rates determined by the
remarketing agent for the current month. The interest rate in effect at
June 30, 2010, was .44 percent.

Details of the district’s long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2010, are
as follows:
Due
Balance Balance Within
7-1-09 Reductions 6-30-10 One Year

Tennessee Adjustable
Rate Pooled Financing
Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004, Maturing
2024, Rate - Adjustable $ 815,000 $ (44,000) $ 771,000 $ 45,000

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 45,000 $ 3,373 $ 48,373
2012 46,000 3,174 49,174
2013 48,000 2,971 50,971
2014 49,000 2,760 51,760
2015 51,000 2,543 53,543
2016-2020 278,000 9,212 287,212
2021-2024 254,000 2,719 256,719
Total $ 771,000 $ 26,752 $ 797,752

Interest requirements are computed using the rate in effect at June 30, 2010,
of .44 percent.

The bonds are secured to the City of Crossville by a statutory lien on the
property and improvements thereto and on the revenues of the district. In
the event that any indebtedness is not satisfied in full by these liens, the City
of Crossville is given a lien on the district revenues that are not required uses
of “911” revenue, as set forth within the Revenue Standards of the Tennessee

Emergency Communications Board, as may be amended.
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Risk Financing

The district is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural
disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from
independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage for the past three years. There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year.
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit F-2

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Local Taxes $ 1,471,749 $ 1,442,881 $ 1,442,881 $ 28,868

Other Local Revenues 230,873 140,000 140,000 90,873

State of Tennessee 49,834 40,399 40,399 9,435

Other Governments and Citizens Groups 0 2,865 2,865 (2,865)
Total Revenues $ 1,752,456 $ 1,626,145 $ 1,626,145 $ 126,311
Expenditures

Public Health and Welfare

Waste Pickup $ 254,182 $ 333,148 $ 333,148 $ 78,966
Convenience Centers 527,308 981,891 556,891 29,583
Recycling Center 202,735 272,920 279,704 76,969
Other Operations
Other Charges 31,686 3,200 32,200 514
Employee Benefits 76,052 85,000 85,122 9,070
Highways
Litter and Trash Collection 70,225 73,278 73,351 3,126
Total Expenditures $ 1,162,188 $ 1,749,437 $ 1,360,416 $ 198,228
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ 590,268 $ (123,292) $ 265,729 $ 324,539
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out $  (425,000) $ 0 $ (425,000) $ 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (425,000) $ 0 $ (425,000) $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 165,268 $ (123,292) $§ (159,271) $ 324,539
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 249,769 156,387 156,387 93,382
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 415,037 $ 33,095 $ (2,884) $ 417,921
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Exhibit F-3

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Funding Progress — Pension Plan

Primary Government and Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department
June 30, 2010

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Value of Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Plan (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) () (b)-() (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7-1-09  $ 32,509 $ 38,613 $ 6,104 84.19 % $ 16,433 37.14 %
7-1-07 28,684 33,855 5,171 84.73 15,881 34.06

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires the plan to prepare the Schedule of
Funding Progress using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. The requirement to present
the Schedule of Funding Progress using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method was a change
made during the 2007 actuarial valuation; therefore, only the two most recent valuations are
presented.

82



"SUOTIJEN[BA [BLIBNIOR OM] 0] S[qB[IBAR A[UO BIB(],

(1% 818G 0 pIE0T  FIE0T 0 60-T-L "

8¢ 620°'7C 0 V236 v2%'6 0 LO-T-L dnoxy) uotyeonpy [eo0]

4 9056 0 0TT'T 0TT‘T 0 60-1-L "

% G 0296 $ %0 ¢re $ gI¢ $ 0 $ LO-T-L dnois) JUSWUISAOY) [8O0T]

(o/(e-q)) ©) (are) (®)-(@) (@ (®) #27e( suelq
[o1ded  [[01deq oney (TvvQ) (TVV) 81988V uoryen[eA

PoI2A0) JO  POISA0)) popunyg S\AY ANqiqery Jooanjep [errenioy

a3ejuadIa popunjun  poNIdINDY [erren)oy

B se "TYVN [erren)oy

(spuesnot) ut syunowre Je[[o(])

010¢ 0€ unfp
Tuewjreds (] [00U0S A3UN0)) pUeB[IoqUIN,) pojuosal] A[030I0SI(] PUB JUOWUIOAOY) ATBWLI]

SUe[J S1jouoy JUOWAO[AW}SOJ Io9U3F() — SSOI30IJ SUIPUN, JO 9[NPOYoS
99SSoUUe [, "‘AJUN0)) pUB[IoquIn,)

Vo MqIUXY

83



CUMBERLAND COUNTY, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The county is required by state statute to adopt annual budgets. Annual budgets are
prepared on the basis in which current available funds must be sufficient to meet
current expenditures. Expenditures and encumbrances may not legally exceed
appropriations authorized by the County Commission and any authorized revisions.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The budgetary level of control is at the major category level established by the
County Uniform Chart of Accounts, as prescribed by the Comptroller of the Treasury
of the State of Tennessee. Major categories are at the department level (examples of
General Fund major categories: County Commission, Board of Equalization, County
Mayor/Executive, County Attorney, etc.). Management may make revisions within
major categories, but only the County Commission may transfer appropriations
between major categories. During the year, several supplementary appropriations
were necessary.

The county's budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), except instances in which encumbrances are treated
as budgeted expenditures. The difference between the budgetary basis and the
GAAP basis is presented on the face of each budgetary schedule.

APPROPRIATIONS EXCEEDED AVAILABLE FUNDS

The budget and subsequent amendments approved by the County Commission for
the Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund resulted in appropriations exceeding estimated
available funding by $2,884. Sound budgetary principles dictate that appropriations
be held within estimated available funding.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SCHEDULES
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Courthouse and Jail Maintenance Fund — The Courthouse and Jail Maintenance Fund is
used to account for a special tax levied by private act on litigation.

Drug Control Fund — The Drug Control Fund is used to account for revenues received from
drug-related fines, forfeitures, and seizures.

Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund is used to
account for operating expenses paid directly from the fee and commission accounts of the
trustee, clerks, register, and sheriff.

Highway/Public Works Fund — The Highway/Public Works Fund is used to account for
transactions of the county’s Highway Department.
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Courthouse and Jail Maintenance Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit G-3

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 60,145 $ 67,000 $ 67,000 $ (6,855)
Total Revenues $ 60,145 $ 67,000 $ 67,000 $ (6,855)
Expenditures
General Government
County Buildings $ 109,586 $ 111,000 $ 111,000 $ 1,414
Other Operations
Other Charges 601 1,000 1,000 399
Total Expenditures $ 110,187 $ 112,000 $ 112,000 $ 1,813
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ (50,042) $ (45,000) $ (45,000) $ (5,042)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (50,042) $ (45,000) $ (45,000) $ (5,042)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 62,278 131,824 131,824 (69,546)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 12,236 $ 86,824 $ 86,824 $ (74,588)
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Drug Control Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit G-4

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 66,103 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 46,103
Other Governments and Citizens Groups 250 0 0 250
Total Revenues 66,353 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 46,353
Expenditures
Public Safety
Drug Enforcement 40,607 20,225 $ 57,391 $ 16,784
Other Operations
Other Charges 117 0 0 (117)
Total Expenditures 40,724 20,225 $ 57,391 $ 16,667
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 25,629 (225) $ (37,391) $ 63,020
Net Change in Fund Balance 25,629 (225) $ (37,391) $ 63,020
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 190,588 190,698 190,698 (110)
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 216,217 190,473 $ 153,307 $ 62,910
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
Highway/Public Works Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit G-5

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes 25,804 130,000 $ 130,000 $ (104,196)
Charges for Current Services 3,500 3,500 3,500 0
Other Local Revenues 0 300 300 (300)
State of Tennessee 2,321,016 2,416,590 2,416,590 (95,574)
Other Governments and Citizens Groups 25,000 0 0 25,000
Total Revenues 2,375,320 2,650,390 $ 2,550,390 $ (175,070)
Expenditures
Highways
Administration 152,044 156,180 $ 156,180 $ 4,136
Highway and Bridge Maintenance 1,666,946 1,847,091 1,912,091 245,145
Operation and Maintenance of Equipment 289,034 351,158 351,158 62,124
Other Charges 93,095 121,350 121,350 28,255
Employee Benefits 65,210 71,000 71,000 5,790
Capital Outlay 280,993 383,222 318,222 37,229
Total Expenditures 2,647,322 2,930,001 $ 2,930,001 $ 382,679
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (172,002) $ (379,611) $ (379,611) $ 207,609
Net Change in Fund Balance (172,002) $ (379,611) $ (379,611) $ 207,609
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 1,165,293 656,668 656,668 508,625
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 993,291 §$ 277,057 $ 277,057 $ 716,234
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Major Governmental Fund

General Debt Service Fund

The General Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest,
and related costs.
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Exhibit H

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget
General Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 4,021,829 $ 3,952,565 3,952,565 $ 69,264
Other Local Revenues 230,806 0 0 230,806
Total Revenues $ 4,252,635 $ 3,952,565 3,952,565 $ 300,070
Expenditures
Principal on Debt
General Government $ 868,854 $ 503,404 868,854 $ 0
Education 1,429,550 1,210,000 1,429,551 1
Interest on Debt
General Government 457,108 496,200 746,752 289,644
Education 1,287,350 2,309,750 2,460,274 1,172,924
Other Debt Service
General Government 80,236 100,000 117,800 37,564
Education 100,000 0 100,000 0
Capital Projects - Donated
Capital Projects Donated to Other Entities 764,298 0 764,298 0
Total Expenditures $ 4,987,396 $ 4,619,354 6,487,529 $ 1,500,133

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Refunding Debt Issued

Premiums on Debt Issued

Other Loans Issued

Transfers Out

Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009

Fund Balance, June 30, 2010

$  (734,761) 3

(666,789) $ (2,5634,964) $ 1,800,203

$ 5,100,000 $
32,098
750,000
(5,000,000)
(5,000,000)

$ 5,100,000 $

(5,000,000)
(5,000,000)

32,098
750,000

$ (4,117,902) $

0
0
0
0
0
0

$ (4,117,902) $

OO © O OO

$ (4,852,663) $
16,720,133

(666,789) $ (6,652,866) $ 1,800,203

16,477,867

16,477,867 242,266

$ 11,867,470 $ 15,811,078 $ 9,825,001 $ 2,042,469
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Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the county in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

Cities - Sales Tax Fund — The Cities - Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the
second half of the sales tax revenues collected inside incorporated cities of the
county. These revenues are received by the county from the State of Tennessee and
forwarded to the various cities on a monthly basis.

Delinquent Tax Agency Fund — The Delinquent Tax Agency Fund is used to account
for funds received from the resale of county properties previously acquired through
Chancery Court tax sales.

Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund — The Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund
1s used to account for amounts collected in an agency capacity by the county clerk,
circuit and general sessions courts clerk, clerk and master, register, and sheriff.
Such collections include amounts due the state, cities, other county funds, litigants,
heirs, and others.
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Exhibit I-1

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

LIABILITTES
Accounts Payable
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others

Due to Other Taxing Units

Total Liabilities

Agency Funds

Constitu-
Cities - Delinquent tional
Sales Tax Officers -
Tax Agency Agency Total
$ 0% 0$ 2,017,485 $ 2,017,485
0 4,419 0 4,419
0 0 656 656
1,164,412 0 0 1,164,412
$ 1,164,412 $ 4,419 $ 2,018,141 $ 3,186,972
$ 0% 4,419 $ 0$ 4,419
0 0 2,018,141 2,018,141
1,164,412 0 0 1,164,412
$ 1,164,412 $ 4,419 $ 2,018,141 $ 3,186,972
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and

Liabilities - All Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit I-2

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Cities - Sales Tax Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 0 6,575,663 $ 6,575,663 0
Due from Other Governments 1,163,237 1,164,412 1,163,237 1,164,412
Total Assets 1,163,237 7,740,075 $ 7,738,900 1,164,412
Liabilities
Due to Other Taxing Units 1,163,237 7,740,075 $ 7,738,900 1,164,412
Total Liabilities 1,163,237 7,740,075 $ 7,738,900 1,164,412
Delinquent Tax Agency Fund
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 6,956 1,170 $ 3,707 4,419
Total Assets 6,956 1,170 $ 3,707 4,419
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 6,956 1,170 $ 3,707 4,419
Total Liabilities 6,956 1,170 $ 3,707 4,419
Constitutional Officers - Agency Fund
Assets
Cash 1,785,269 10,760,633 $ 10,528,417 2,017,485
Accounts Receivable 0 656 0 656
Total Assets 1,785,269 10,761,289 $ 10,528,417 2,018,141
Liabilities
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 1,785,269 10,761,289 $ 10,528,417 2,018,141
Total Liabilities 1,785,269 10,761,289 $ 10,528,417 2,018,141
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash 1,785,269 10,760,633 $ 10,528,417 2,017,485
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 6,956 6,576,833 6,579,370 4,419
Accounts Receivable 0 656 0 656
Due from Other Governments 1,163,237 1,164,412 1,163,237 1,164,412
Total Assets 2,955,462 18,502,534 $ 18,271,024 3,186,972
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 6,956 1,170 $ 3,707 4,419
Due to Litigants, Heirs, and Others 1,785,269 10,761,289 10,528,417 2,018,141
Due to Other Taxing Units 1,163,237 7,740,075 7,738,900 1,164,412
Total Liabilities 2,955,462 18,502,534 $ 18,271,024 3,186,972
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Cumberland County School Department

This section presents combining and individual fund financial
statements for the Cumberland County School Department, a discretely
presented component unit. The Cumberland County School Department
uses a General Fund and two Special Revenue Funds.

General Purpose School Fund — The General Purpose School Fund is used to
account for general operations of the School Department.

School Federal Projects Fund — The School Federal Projects Fund is used to account
for restricted federal revenues, which must be expended on specific education
programs.

Central Cafeteria Fund — The Central Cafeteria Fund is used to account for the
cafeteria operations in each of the schools.
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Exhibit J-2

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Inventories

Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Due from Other Funds

Property Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Property Taxes

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue - Current Property Taxes
Deferred Revenue - Delinquent Property Taxes
Other Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Inventory
Reserved for Career Ladder - Extended Contract
Reserved for Career Ladder Program
Reserved for Basic Education Program
Reserved for Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies
Reserved for Special Education - Grants to States
Other Federal Reserves
Unreserved, Reported In:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds (Deficit)
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

99

Nonmajor
Major Funds Fund Total
General School Govern-
Purpose Federal Central mental
School Projects Cafeteria Funds
$ 03 03 95 $ 95
3,315,572 17,816 612,776 3,946,164
0 0 140,751 140,751
6,043 0 1,405 7,448
2,930,275 415,839 38,664 3,384,778
19,341 0 0 19,341
8,372,526 0 0 8,372,526
(200,219) 0 0 (200,219)
$ 14,443,538 $§ 433,655 $§ 793,691 $ 15,670,884
3 80,596 $ 273,997 $ 03 354,593
17,956 80,169 0 98,125
0 19,341 0 19,341
7,933,774 0 0 7,933,774
215,134 0 0 215,134
680,125 0 0 680,125
$ 8,927,585 § 373,507 $ 0 $ 9,301,092
3 509,800 $ 0% 03 509,800
0 0 140,751 140,751
38,156 0 0 38,156
7,634 0 0 7,634
3,310,236 0 0 3,310,236
0 28,046 0 28,046
0 363,089 0 363,089
0 22,513 0 22,513
1,650,127 0 0 1,650,127
0 (353,500 652,940 299,440
$ 5,515953 § 60,148 $§ 793,691 $ 6,369,792

$ 14,443,538 3

433,655

$ 793,691 $ 15,670,884




Exhibit J-3

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total fund balances - balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit J-2) $ 6,369,792

(1) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
in the governmental funds.

Add: land $ 2,088,454
Add: buildings and improvements net of accumulated depreciation 60,908,595
Add: infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation 976,298
Add: other capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 3,154,665 67,128,012

(2) Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Less: compensated absences payable $ (80,521)
Less: other postemployment benefits liability (1,249,031) (1,329,552)

(3) Other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and therefore are deferred

in the governmental funds. 895,259
Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 73,063,511
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Exhibit J-4

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Nonmajor
Major Funds Fund
General School Total
Purpose Federal Central Governmental
School Projects Cafeteria Funds
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 14,265,049 $ 03 0 $ 14,265,049
Charges for Current Services 186,683 0 975,281 1,161,964
Other Local Revenues 362,421 0 18,035 380,456
State of Tennessee 29,848,424 111,026 37,951 29,997,401
Federal Government 17,105 6,222,926 2,572,283 8,812,314
Total Revenues $ 44,679,682 $§ 6,333,952 3,603,650 $§ 54,617,184
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction $ 27,095,342 $ 5,221,770 0 $ 32,317,112
Support Services 14,490,774 1,247,740 0 15,738,514
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 1,171,313 0 3,608,161 4,779,474
Capital Outlay 319,816 349,164 0 668,980
Total Expenditures $ 43,077,245 $ 6,818,674 3,608,161 $ 53,504,080
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ 1,602,437 $§ (484,722) $ (4,611) $ 1,113,104
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In $ 28,208 $ 0$ 0$ 28,208
Transfers Out 0 (28,208) 0 (28,208)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3 28,208 § (28,208) $ 0$ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 1,630,645 $§ (512,930) $ (4,611) $ 1,113,104
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 3,885,308 573,078 798,302 5,256,688
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 5,515,953 $ 60,148 $ 793,691 $ 6,369,792
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Exhibit J-5

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (Exhibit B) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit J-4) $ 1,113,104

(1) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated
over their useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The
difference between capital outlays and depreciation is itemized as

follows:
Add: capital assets purchased in the current period $ 646,675
Less: current year depreciation expense (1,969,804) (1,323,129)

(2) The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.
Less: loss on disposal of capital assets $ (6,221)
Less: decrease of revenue for the sale of disposed assets (160) (6,381)

(3) Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Add: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30,2010 $ 895,259
Less: deferred delinquent property taxes and other deferred June 30, 2009 (769,069) 126,190

(4) Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in other postemployment benefits liability (495,586)

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B) $ (585,802)
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Exhibit J-7

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

School Federal Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues
State of Tennessee $ 111,026 03 03 111,026
Federal Government 6,222,926 8,491,594 8,495,012 (2,272,086)
Total Revenues $ 6,333,952 8,491,694 $§ 8,495,012 $ (2,161,060)
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular Instruction Program $ 2,965,301 3,259,278 $ 3,299,259 $ 333,958
Special Education Program 2,176,480 3,005,165 3,212,452 1,035,972
Vocational Education Program 79,989 77,255 79,989 0
Support Services
Health Services 1,878 10,000 10,000 8,122
Other Student Support 95,578 428,716 418,256 322,678
Regular Instruction Program 677,079 1,102,647 1,102,647 425,568
Special Education Program 353,694 457,965 457,990 104,296
Vocational Education Program 6,970 6,970 6,970 0
Operation of Plant 1,354 27,400 1,354 0
Transportation 111,187 130,000 127,206 16,019
Capital Outlay
Regular Capital Outlay 349,164 346,000 346,000 (3,164)
Total Expenditures $ 6,818,674 $§ 8,851,396 $§ 9,062,123 $§ 2,243,449
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures $ (484,722) § (359,802) § (567,111) $ 82,389

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009

Fund Balance, June 30, 2010

$ 0$ 155104 $ 155,104 $  (155,104)
(28,208) (185,946) (189,627) 161,419
$  (28208)$  (30,842) $  (34,523) $ 6,315
$ (512,930)$ (390,644) $  (601,634) $ 88,704
573,078 540,238 601,634 (28,556)
$ 60,148 $ 149,594 $ 0 $ 60,148
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Actual and Budget

Exhibit J-8

Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department

Central Cafeteria Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final (Negative)
Revenues

Charges for Current Services $ 975,281 $§ 1,127,983 $§ 1,127,983 $ (152,702)

Other Local Revenues 18,035 24,250 20,602 (2,567)

State of Tennessee 37,951 41,088 41,088 (3,137)

Federal Government 2,672,283 2,241,423 2,298,052 274,231
Total Revenues $ 3,603,550 $ 3,434,744 $ 3,487,725 $ 115,825
Expenditures

Operation of Non-Instructional Services

Food Service $ 3,608,161 $§ 3,620,438 $§ 3,677,765 $ 69,604
Total Expenditures $ 3,608,161 $ 3,620,438 $ 3,677,765 $ 69,604
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures 3 (4,611) § (185,694) $  (190,040) $ 185,429
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Insurance Recovery 3 0$ 0$ 4,348 § (4,348)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3 0$ 0$ 4,348 § (4,348)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (4,611) $§ (185,694) $ (185,692) $ 181,081
Fund Balance, July 1, 2009 798,302 763,706 763,706 34,596
Fund Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 793,691 $ 578,012 $ 578,014 $ 215,677
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Cumberland County Railroad Authority

This section presents combining and individual fund financial
statements for the Cumberland County Railroad Authority, a discretely
presented component unit. The Cumberland County Railroad Authority
uses only one fund, a General Fund.

General Fund — The General Fund is used to account for the general operations of
the Railroad Authority.
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Exhibit K-1

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Statement of Net Assets and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
Discretely Presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority
June 30, 2010

Statement
General of Net
Fund Adjustments Assets
ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 32,765 $ 0$ 32,765
Due from Other Governments 1,898 0 1,898
Total Assets $ 34,663 $ 0$ 34,663
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/
NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 1,898 $ 0$ 1,898
Total Liabilities $ 1,898 $ 0$ 1,898
Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumbrances $ 335,008 $ (335,008) $ 0
Unreserved Reported In:

General Fund (302,243) 302,243 0
Total Fund Balances $ 32,765 $ (32,765) $ 0
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 34,663
Net Assets:

Unrestricted $ 32,765 $ 32,765
Total Net Assets $ 0$ 34,663
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Exhibit K-2

Cumberland County, Tennessee

Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance/Net Assets

Discretely Presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Statement
General of
Fund Adjustments  Activities
Expenditures/Expenses:

Other Operations:

Other Economic and Community Development $ 1,095,090 $ 0 $ 1,095,090
Total Expenditures/Expenses $ 1,095,090 $ 0 $ 1,095,090
Program Revenues:

Operating Grants and Contributions:

State of Tennessee $ 1,093,341 $ 0 $ 1,093,341
Total Expenditures/Expenses $ 1,093,341 $ 0 $ 1,093,341
Net Program Expense $ 1,749
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures $ (1,749) $ 1,749 $ 0
Change in Net Assets 0 (1,749) (1,749)
Fund Balance/Net Assets:

July 1, 2009 34,514 0 34,514
June 30, 2010 3 32,765 3 0 $ 32,765
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M I SCELLANEOUS SCHEDULES
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Exhibit L-2

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Long-term Debt Requirements by Year

Year

Ending Notes

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 1,007,404 $ 54,602 $ 1,062,006
2012 607,404 29,068 636,472
2013 607,404 14,534 621,938
Total $ 2,222212 $ 98,204 $ 2,320,416
Year

Ending Other Loans

June 30 Principal Interest Fees Total
2011 $ 1,890,000 $ 1,124,137 $ 512,373 $ 3,526,510
2012 2,050,000 1,097,708 501,496 3,649,204
2013 2,100,000 1,062,635 490,290 3,652,925
2014 1,725,000 1,024,987 478,901 3,228,888
2015 1,805,000 993,813 471,893 3,270,706
2016 1,890,000 958,350 464,703 3,313,053
2017 1,950,000 921,737 457,074 3,328,811
2018 2,055,000 881,988 449,227 3,386,215
2019 2,185,000 839,612 440,978 3,465,590
2020 2,265,000 811,713 428,495 3,505,208
2021 2,195,000 782,975 415,537 3,393,512
2022 2,270,000 750,900 403,565 3,424,465
2023 2,495,000 716,333 390,786 3,602,119
2024 2,520,000 667,092 373,992 3,561,084
2025 2,645,000 620,553 356,797 3,622,350
2026 2,780,000 572,075 338,674 3,690,749
2027 2,935,000 521,635 319,552 3,776,187
2028 2,730,000 468,930 299,745 3,498,675
2029 2,355,000 407,575 270,621 3,033,196
2030 2,470,000 367,540 239,980 3,077,520
2031 2,545,000 325,550 207,821 3,078,371
2032 2,620,000 282,285 174,519 3,076,804
2033 1,755,000 237,745 146,982 2,139,727
2034 1,805,000 207,910 128,537 2,141,447
2035 1,880,000 177,225 109,567 2,166,792
2036 1,980,000 145,265 89,808 2,215,073
2037 2,080,000 111,605 68,998 2,260,603
2038 2,205,000 76,245 47,137 2,328,382
2039 2,280,000 38,760 23,963 2,342,723
Total $ 64,460,000 $ 17,194,878 $ 9,102,011 $ 90,756,889
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Exhibit L-6

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General School
Purpose Federal Central
School Projects Cafeteria Total
Local Taxes
County Property Taxes
Current Property Tax $ 6,946,968 $ 0 0 $ 6,946,968
Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 152,151 0 0 152,151
Circuit/Clerk & Master Collections - Prior Years 64,244 0 0 64,244
Interest and Penalty 35,091 0 0 35,091
County Local Option Taxes
Local Option Sales Tax 7,061,110 0 0 7,061,110
Business Tax 5,485 0 0 5,485
Total Local Taxes $ 14,265,049 $ 0 0 $ 14,265,049
Charges for Current Services
Education Charges
Tuition - Other $ 87,227 $ 0 0% 87,227
Lunch Payments - Children 0 0 512,675 512,675
Lunch Payments - Adults 0 0 61,920 61,920
Income from Breakfast 0 0 66,979 66,979
A la carte Sales 0 0 329,377 329,377
Receipts from Individual Schools 93,876 0 0 93,876
TBI Criminal Background Fees 5,580 0 0 5,580
Other Charges for Services
Other Charges for Services 0 0 4,330 4,330
Total Charges for Current Services $ 186,683 $ 0 975,281 $ 1,161,964
Other Local Revenues
Recurring Items
Investment Income $ 03 0 5,076 $ 5,076
Sale of Recycled Materials 1,157 0 0 1,157
Refund of Telecommunication and Internet Fees (E-Rate) 59,455 0 0 59,455
Retirees' Insurance Payments 1,521 0 0 1,521
Miscellaneous Refunds 155,489 0 12,259 167,748
Nonrecurring Items
Sale of Property 525 0 0 525
Resale of Materials - T&I House 143,000 0 0 143,000
Damages Recovered from Individuals 298 0 0 298
Contributions and Gifts 976 0 700 1,676
Total Other Local Revenues $ 362,421 $ 0 18,035 $ 380,456
State of Tennessee
General Government Grants
On-Behalf Contributions for OPEB $ 248,657 $ 0 03 248,657
State Education Funds
Basic Education Program 26,525,599 0 0 26,525,599
Basic Education Program - ARRA 1,319,400 0 0 1,319,400
Early Childhood Education 1,031,672 0 0 1,031,672
School Food Service 0 0 37,951 37,951
Other State Education Funds 127,733 111,026 0 238,759
Coordinated School Health - ARRA 100,000 0 0 100,000
Internet Connectivity - ARRA 20,986 0 0 20,986
Family Resource Centers - ARRA 33,300 0 0 33,300
(Continued)
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department (Cont.)

General School
Purpose Federal Central
School Projects Cafeteria Total
State of Tennessee (Cont.)
State Education Funds (Cont.)
Career Ladder Program $ 332,794 $ 03 03 332,794
Career Ladder - Extended Contract 1,141 0 0 1,141
Career Ladder - Extended Contract - ARRA 80,800 0 0 80,800
Other State Revenues
Safe Schools - ARRA 22,000 0 0 22,000
Other State Revenues 4,342 0 0 4,342
Total State of Tennessee $ 29,848,424 $ 111,026 $ 37,951 § 29,997,401
Federal Government
Federal Through State
USDA School Lunch Program $ 03 0 $ 1,774,756 $ 1,774,756
USDA - Commodities 0 0 107,554 107,554
Breakfast 0 0 606,558 606,558
USDA - Other 0 0 61,856 61,856
USDA Food Service Equipment Grant - ARRA 0 0 21,559 21,559
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 0 142,799 0 142,799
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 0 2,478,739 0 2,478,739
Special Education - Grants to States 15,051 2,586,223 0 2,601,274
Special Education Preschool Grants 2,054 63,469 0 65,523
English Language Acquisition Grants 0 11,816 0 11,816
Safe and Drug-free Schools - State Grants 0 428,727 0 428,727
Rural Education 0 74,406 0 74,406
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 0 21,089 0 21,089
Eisenhower Professional Development State Grants 0 359,888 0 359,888
Other Federal through State 0 55,770 0 55,770
Total Federal Government $ 17,1056 $§ 6,222,926 § 2,572,283 $§ 8,812,314
Total $ 44,679,682 $ 6,333,952 $§ 3,603,550 $ 54,617,184
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County Railroad Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Total

State of Tennessee
General Government Grants
Other General Government Grants
Total State of Tennessee

Total
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$ 1,093,341 $ 1,093,341
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Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Fund
General Government

County Commission

Board and Committee Members Fees $ 63,379
Social Security 4,848
State Retirement 2,499
Employee and Dependent Insurance 87,096
Life Insurance 829
Dental Insurance 5,073
Audit Services 14,994
Contracts with Government Agencies 25,270
Contracts with Private Agencies 1,200
Contributions 255,000
Dues and Memberships 2,902
Maintenance Agreements 3,500
Travel 1,464
Communication Equipment 290,000
Furniture and Fixtures 268,851
Other Capital Outlay 1,875
Total County Commission $ 1,028,780

Board of Equalization

Board and Committee Members Fees $ 3,268
Total Board of Equalization 3,268
Beer Board

Board and Committee Members Fees $ 1,360

Social Security 73

Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 416
Total Beer Board 1,849

Other Boards and Committees

Legal Services $ 3,996
Other Charges 125
Total Other Boards and Committees 4,121

County Mayor/Executive

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 73,866
Assistant(s) 35,700
Data Processing Personnel 26,600
Secretary(ies) 24,400
Longevity Pay 1,760
Social Security 11,644

(Continued)
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)
County Mayor/Executive (Cont.)

State Retirement $

Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Communication
Contracts with Government Agencies
Dues and Memberships
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment
Printing, Stationery, and Forms
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Office Supplies
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds
Other Charges
Other Equipment

Total County Mayor/Executive

County Attorne

County Official/Administrative Officer $

Total County Attorney

Election Commission

County Official/Administrative Officer $

Clerical Personnel

Part-time Personnel

Longevity Pay

Election Commission

Election Workers

In-Service Training

Social Security

State Retirement

Employee and Dependent Insurance

Life Insurance

Dental Insurance

Communication

Dues and Memberships

Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Printing, Stationery, and Forms

125

14,458
25,982
183
1,207
670
1,443
10,000
1,710
411
767
2,161
11,980
1,783
100
586
10,000

46,103

51,198
79,400
3,139
2,092
5,225
20,990
3,244
10,228
11,770
26,238
183
1,207
2,403
275
2,517
16,157
9,061

$

257,411

46,103
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Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)

Election Commission (Cont.)

Rentals $ 800
Travel 1,728
Other Contracted Services 14,567
Office Supplies 1,910
Other Charges 1,907
Total Election Commission $ 266,239

Register of Deeds

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Deputy(ies) 109,871
Part-time Personnel 16,299
Longevity Pay 3,076
Social Security 13,841
State Retirement 15,699
Employee and Dependent Insurance 32,030
Life Insurance 219
Dental Insurance 1,509
Communication 1,292
Dues and Memberships 512
Maintenance Agreements 18,524
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 5,736
Office Supplies 761
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 100
Other Charges 34
Total Register of Deeds 283,457
Engineering
Operating Lease Payments $ 4,039
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 22,158
Gasoline 3,671
Utilities 5,917
Other Supplies and Materials 1,700
Maintenance Equipment 22,880
Total Engineering 60,365
County Buildings
Supervisor/Director $ 34,700
Custodial Personnel 159,671
Longevity Pay 3,893
Overtime Pay 3,952

(Continued)
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
General Government (Cont.)

County Buildings (Cont.)
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings
Travel
Gasoline
Office Supplies
Uniforms
Utilities

Total County Buildings

Other General Administration
Supervisor/Director
Mechanic(s)
Longevity Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Communication
Gasoline
Lubricants
Uniforms
Utilities
Other Supplies and Materials
Total Other General Administration

Finance
Accounting and Budgeting

County Official/Administrative Officer
Accountants/Bookkeepers
Salary Supplements
Longevity Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
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15,963
18,560
50,131
321
2,364
7,026
49,800
81
5,931
437
1,779
86,335

30,243
26,104
886
4,493
5,210
12,607
111
603
1,502
1,252
1,388
9,983
1,636
4,854
4,188

63,954
193,743
8,520
7,495
21,002
22,159

$

440,944

105,060
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Finance (Cont.)

Accounting and Budgeting (Cont.)

Employee and Dependent Insurance $ 44,101
Life Insurance 288
Dental Insurance 2,087
Other Fringe Benefits 4,111
Communication 2,544
Data Processing Services 1,000
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 2,082
Maintenance Agreements 9,338
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 8,508
Travel 309
Office Supplies 3,141
Periodicals 25
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 350
Total Accounting and Budgeting 3 394,757
Property Assessor's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Assistant(s) 183,107
Longevity Pay 3,164
In-Service Training 2,428
Social Security 18,866
State Retirement 22,195
Employee and Dependent Insurance 51,067
Life Insurance 307
Dental Insurance 2,414
Communication 1,047
Data Processing Services 35,492
Dues and Memberships 1,300
Maintenance Agreements 3,995
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 73
Travel 2,400
Other Contracted Services 20,350
Gasoline 575
Office Supplies 1,968
Other Supplies and Materials 1,297
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 152
Total Property Assessor's Office 416,151

Reappraisal Program
Clerical Personnel $ 59,623

(Continued)
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Finance (Cont.)

Reappraisal Program (Cont.)

Longevity Pay $ 790
In-Service Training 1,331
Social Security 4,618
State Retirement 3,954
Employee and Dependent Insurance 15,653
Life Insurance 90
Dental Insurance 754
Data Processing Services 12,510
Postal Charges 2,078
Travel 6,197
Duplicating Supplies 1,000
Office Supplies 1,000
Total Reappraisal Program 3 109,598
County Trustee's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Deputy(ies) 139,841
Longevity Pay 4,706
Social Security 15,591
State Retirement 18,494
Employee and Dependent Insurance 39,357
Life Insurance 255
Dental Insurance 1,810
Communication 1,195
Dues and Memberships 647
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 5,134
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 4,200
Travel 366
Office Supplies 1,800
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 6,246
Other Charges 700
Total County Trustee's Office 304,296
County Clerk's Office
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Deputy(ies) 266,995
Longevity Pay 4,920
Social Security 24,623
State Retirement 29,792
Employee and Dependent Insurance 77,290
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)

Finance (Cont.)
County Clerk's Office (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 471
Dental Insurance 3,621
Communication 1,155
Dues and Memberships 662
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 18,219
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 2,423
Travel 362
Office Supplies 4,959
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 175
Total County Clerk's Office 3 499,621

Administration of Justice
Circuit Court

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Deputy(ies) 270,123
Part-time Personnel 8,505
Longevity Pay 6,184
Jury and Witness Expense 13,936
Social Security 26,550
State Retirement 30,181
Employee and Dependent Insurance 70,223
Life Insurance 435
Dental Insurance 3,319
Communication 3,484
Dues and Memberships 512
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 11,164
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 7,343
Office Supplies 4,414
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 1,255
Other Equipment 2,200
Total Circuit Court 523,782

General Sessions Court

Judge(s) $ 138,676
Secretary(ies) 27,514
Part-time Personnel 1,031
Longevity Pay 825
Social Security 10,918
State Retirement 14,814
Employee and Dependent Insurance 12,863

(Continued)

130



Exhibit L-8

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

General Sessions Court (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 111
Dental Insurance 603
Communication 1,002
Contracts with Government Agencies 67,677
Dues and Memberships 905
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 55
Travel 969
Office Supplies 566
Periodicals 455
Total General Sessions Court $ 278,984
Chancery Court
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 63,954
Deputy(ies) 67,100
Longevity Pay 2,522
Social Security 9,833
State Retirement 12,234
Employee and Dependent Insurance 19,167
Life Insurance 147
Dental Insurance 905
Communication 1,580
Dues and Memberships 742
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 9,615
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 4,757
Office Supplies 3,000
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 375
Other Equipment 4,100
Total Chancery Court 200,031
Juvenile Court
Youth Service Officer(s) $ 60,021
Longevity Pay 1,100
Social Security 4,676
State Retirement 5,421
Employee and Dependent Insurance 12,863
Life Insurance 111
Dental Insurance 603
Communication 1,056
Contracts with Government Agencies 17,788
Travel 920
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)
Juvenile Court (Cont.)
Office Supplies 3 871
Total Juvenile Court $ 105,430

Judicial Commissioners

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 65,684
Supervisor/Director 31,700
Part-time Personnel 30,610
Longevity Pay 2,028
In-Service Training 757
Social Security 9,947
State Retirement 5,736
Employee and Dependent Insurance 15,529
Life Insurance 108
Dental Insurance 1,031
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 234
Travel 405
Office Supplies 325
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 800
Total Judicial Commissioners 164,894

Probate Court

Secretary(ies) $ 142,900
Longevity Pay 4,292
Social Security 10,453
State Retirement 13,056
Employee and Dependent Insurance 32,030
Life Insurance 180
Dental Insurance 1,509
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 7
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 178
Office Supplies 500
Total Probate Court 205,105

Courtroom Security

Deputy(ies) $ 109,945
Guards 21,336
Part-time Personnel 18,180
Longevity Pay 2,119
Social Security 11,580
State Retirement 8,993
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General Fund (Cont.)
Administration of Justice (Cont.)

Courtroom Security (Cont.)

Employee and Dependent Insurance $ 26,886
Life Insurance 140
Dental Insurance 1,283
Total Courtroom Security 3 200,462

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 70,350
Deputy(ies) 1,363,620
Salary Supplements 25,800
Guards 2,546
Secretary(ies) 62,200
Longevity Pay 26,897
In-Service Training 12,947
Social Security 116,894
State Retirement 134,780
Employee and Dependent Insurance 278,302
Life Insurance 1,663
Dental Insurance 13,277
Communication 19,698
Dues and Memberships 300
Evaluation and Testing 2,369
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 4,241
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 47,427
Printing, Stationery, and Forms 1,110
Travel 9,279
Other Contracted Services 7,878
Gasoline 142,589
Office Supplies 8,598
Uniforms 15,261
Other Supplies and Materials 33,606
Premiums on Corporate Surety Bonds 100
Other Charges 1,773
Communication Equipment 900
Motor Vehicles 117,608
Other Equipment 4,192
Total Sheriff's Department 2,526,205
Drug Enforcement
Overtime Pay $ 9,526
Total Drug Enforcement 9,526
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Jail
Medical Personnel
Bus Drivers
Guards
Clerical Personnel
Cafeteria Personnel
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
In-Service Training
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Evaluation and Testing
Medical and Dental Services
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Food Supplies
Office Supplies
Uniforms
Utilities
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Building Construction
Food Service Equipment
Total Jail

Juvenile Services
Guards
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Communication
Office Supplies
Utilities

Total Juvenile Services
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$ 30,701
30,623
947,649
93,975
97,888
101,355
22,487
610
100,949
101,653
264,058
1,505
12,824
3,075
199,540
2,654
1,334
178,217
6,175
14,726
196,608
94,086
23,502
2,995,542
8,174

$ 59,585
54,058

892

8,736

5,364

8,702

603
125
350
1,290

$

5,529,910

139,764
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Fire Prevention and Control

Supervisor/Director $ 47,066
Salary Supplements 3,600
Part-time Personnel 13,398
Longevity Pay 9,057
Overtime Pay 44,515
Other Salaries and Wages 268,568
In-Service Training 12,437
Social Security 28,518
State Retirement 32,947
Employee and Dependent Insurance 61,160
Life Insurance 402
Dental Insurance 3,017
Other Fringe Benefits 446
Communication 1,586
Contracts with Government Agencies 2,000
Evaluation and Testing 1,695
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 11,189
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 15,290
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 22,087
Travel 2,886
Gasoline 20,296
Office Supplies 1,999
Utilities 49,932
Other Supplies and Materials 1,965
Other Charges 24,960
Total Fire Prevention and Control $ 681,016

Civil Defense

Assistant(s) $ 28,100
Supervisor/Director 42,200
Longevity Pay 1,618
Social Security 5,665
State Retirement 6,605
Employee and Dependent Insurance 12,863
Life Insurance 111
Dental Insurance 603
Other Fringe Benefits 2,545
Communication 1,946
Consultants 2,700
Travel 25

(Continued)

135



Exhibit L-8

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Civil Defense (Cont.)

Gasoline $ 655

Office Supplies 340

Other Charges 148

Other Capital Outlay 43,269
Total Civil Defense $ 149,393
Rescue Squad

Contracts with Private Agencies $ 6,750
Total Rescue Squad 6,750
Other Emergency Management

Supervisor/Director $ 38,500

Dispatchers/Radio Operators 501,182

Part-time Personnel 28,835

Longevity Pay 6,414

Overtime Pay 5,425

In-Service Training 2,876

Social Security 44,179

State Retirement 45,639

Employee and Dependent Insurance 137,430

Life Insurance 792

Dental Insurance 6,638

Other Fringe Benefits 2,776

Office Supplies 1,593

Office Equipment 1,769
Total Other Emergency Management 824,048

County Coroner/Medical Examiner
Other Per Diem and Fees $ 49,345
Total County Coroner/Medical Examiner 49,345

Other Public Safety

Deputy(ies) $ 7,889
In-Service Training 4,800
Social Security 970
State Retirement 62
Other Charges 4,672
Total Other Public Safety 18,393
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare
Local Health Center

Custodial Personnel $ 17,202
Part-time Personnel 17,580
Longevity Pay 2,147
Overtime Pay 1,425
Other Salaries and Wages 258,524
Social Security 22,598
State Retirement 17,652
Employee and Dependent Insurance 68,729
Life Insurance 348
Dental Insurance 2,917
Communication 16,727
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 6,977
Travel 9,834
Other Contracted Services 5,669
Drugs and Medical Supplies 10,450
Office Supplies 9,816
Utilities 18,338
Other Supplies and Materials 5,509
Specialized Medical Treatment 11,995
Other Charges 329
Total Local Health Center $ 504,766
Rabies and Animal Control
Deputy(ies) $ 46,216
Part-time Personnel 6,980
Longevity Pay 1,346
Other Salaries and Wages 6,007
Social Security 4,140
State Retirement 4,582
Employee and Dependent Insurance 13,119
Life Insurance 69
Dental Insurance 578
Communication 122
Gasoline 5,812
Office Supplies 132
Uniforms 1,020
Other Supplies and Materials 2,334
Total Rabies and Animal Control 92,457
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General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)

Ambulance/Emergency Medical Services

Supervisor/Director $ 49,327
Medical Personnel 878,711
Secretary(ies) 48,818
Part-time Personnel 90,804
Longevity Pay 23,232
Overtime Pay 605,864
In-Service Training 3,487
Social Security 127,284
State Retirement 132,976
Employee and Dependent Insurance 278,434
Life Insurance 1,617
Dental Insurance 13,176
Other Fringe Benefits 2,777
Communication 8,786
Consultants 2,400
Debt Collection Services 19,283
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 2,253
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 945
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 30,000
Travel 650
Other Contracted Services 6,000
Drugs and Medical Supplies 84,142
Gasoline 98,214
Office Supplies 7,164
Utilities 16,535
Other Supplies and Materials 15,905
Other Charges 7,037
Motor Vehicles 167,768
Other Equipment 25,000
Total Ambulance/Emergency Medical Services $ 2,748,589
Alcohol and Drug Programs
Assistant(s) $ 31,100
Supervisor/Director 32,165
Longevity Pay 1,898
Social Security 4,936
State Retirement 5,833
Employee and Dependent Insurance 13,119
Life Insurance 111
Dental Insurance 603
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All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Alcohol and Drug Programs (Cont.)
Other Fringe Benefits
Total Alcohol and Drug Programs

Appropriation to State
Contributions
Total Appropriation to State

Other Local Welfare Services
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
Other Salaries and Wages
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Postal Charges
Travel
Office Supplies
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Office Equipment
Total Other Local Welfare Services

Other Public Health and Welfare
Attendants
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Communication
Gasoline
Utilities
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Total Other Public Health and Welfare
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$

$

$

598

57,500

3,150
1,059
118,525
9,263
9,893
13,076
95

905

158
3,961
2,698
152,260
100,875
180

20,803
10,407
104
2,407
1,889
6,560

302
389
1,340
53
11,038
7,904
63

$

90,363

57,500

416,098

63,295
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General Fund (Cont.)
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services
Senior Citizens Assistance

Contracts with Private Agencies 3 27,132
Total Senior Citizens Assistance $ 27,132
Libraries

Supervisor/Director $ 42 212

Deputy(ies) 40,388

Secretary(ies) 25,314

Clerical Personnel 22,318

Part-time Personnel 76,249

Longevity Pay 2,436

In-Service Training 258

Social Security 16,017

State Retirement 10,265

Employee and Dependent Insurance 25,700

Life Insurance 177

Dental Insurance 1,182

Other Fringe Benefits 1,588

Communication 7,720

Contracts with Government Agencies 3,532

Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 5,845

Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 4,673

Postal Charges 2,500

Printing, Stationery, and Forms 2,360

Other Contracted Services 10,441

Library Books/Media 74,987

Periodicals 4,688

Utilities 39,057

Other Supplies and Materials 14,984

Building Construction 2,329,912
Total Libraries 2,764,803

Parks and Fair Boards

Supervisor/Director $ 20,076
Custodial Personnel 17,701
Part-time Personnel 28,917
Longevity Pay 177
Overtime Pay 44
Social Security 5,260
State Retirement 3,535
Employee and Dependent Insurance 13,119

(Continued)

140



Exhibit L-8

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Fund (Cont.)
Social, Cultural, and Recreational Services (Cont.)
Parks and Fair Boards (Cont.)

Life Insurance $ 111

Dental Insurance 603

Other Fringe Benefits 1,870

Communication 517

Gasoline 3,098

Uniforms 970

Utilities 42,337

Other Supplies and Materials 24,608
Total Parks and Fair Boards $ 162,943
Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational

Contracts with Private Agencies $ 47,000
Total Other Social, Cultural, and Recreational 47,000

Agriculture and Natural Resources
Agriculture Extension Service

Salary Supplements $ 83,708
Communication 1,843
Travel 2,100
Total Agriculture Extension Service 87,651

Soil Conservation

Secretary(ies) $ 28,600
Part-time Personnel 11,072
Longevity Pay 715
Social Security 3,090
State Retirement 2,600
Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,304
Life Insurance 36
Dental Insurance 302
Dues and Memberships 1,245
Legal Notices, Recording, and Court Costs 700
Travel 2,777
Office Supplies 488
Total Soil Conservation 57,929

Other Operations

Tourism
Contracts with Private Agencies $ 43,643
Contributions 54,412
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General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations (Cont.)
Tourism (Cont.)
Other Contracted Services $ 20,000
Total Tourism $ 118,055

Other Economic and Community Development

Building Construction $ 262,713
Other Construction 8,157
Total Other Economic and Community Development 270,870

Veterans' Services

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 20,412
Social Security 1,562
State Retirement 730
Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,560
Life Insurance 33
Dental Insurance 277
Communication 699
Dues and Memberships 243
Travel 1,264
Office Supplies 1,768
Total Veterans' Services 33,548

Other Charges

Liability Insurance $ 186,031

Trustee's Commission 212,290

Other Charges 6,537
Total Other Charges 404,858
Employee Benefits

Unemployment Compensation $ 31,426

Medical and Dental Services 765

Workers' Compensation Insurance 409,747
Total Employee Benefits 441,938

ARRA Grant No. 1

Other Salaries and Wages $ 71,847
Other Supplies and Materials 10,975
Total ARRA Grant No. 1 82,822

ARRA Grant No. 2
Other Charges $ 19,786
Total ARRA Grant No. 2 19,786
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General Fund (Cont.)
Other Operations (Cont.)
ARRA Grant No. 3
Other Charges
Total ARRA Grant No. 3

Miscellaneous
Postal Charges
Other Charges

Total Miscellaneous

Total General Fund

Courthouse and Jail Maintenance Fund
General Government
County Buildings
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings
Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment
Total County Buildings

Other Operations
Other Charges
Trustee's Commission
Total Other Charges

Total Courthouse and Jail Maintenance Fund

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
Public Health and Welfare
Waste Pickup

Laborers
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
Overtime Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance

143

50,878

67,119
161

93,586
16,000

601

114,087
7,799
2,020

191
9,538
9,246

30,081
140

$

$

50,878

67,280

109,586

601

$ 24,445,619

110,187

(Continued)



Exhibit L-8

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Waste Pickup (Cont.)

Dental Insurance $ 1,433
Other Fringe Benefits 1,120
Diesel Fuel 44,532
Uniforms 1,250
Other Supplies and Materials 32,745
Total Waste Pickup 3 254,182
Convenience Centers
Guards $ 30,737
Part-time Personnel 344,806
Overtime Pay 1,627
Social Security 29,763
State Retirement 2,097
Employee and Dependent Insurance 6,463
Life Insurance 23
Dental Insurance 302
Termination Benefits 44,989
Other Fringe Benefits 412
Operating Lease Payments 9,800
Uniforms 6,177
Utilities 39,733
Other Supplies and Materials 10,379
Total Convenience Centers 527,308

Recycling Center

Laborers $ 57,057
Part-time Personnel 41,496
Longevity Pay 1,658
Overtime Pay 390
Social Security 7,740
State Retirement 4,227
Employee and Dependent Insurance 22,104
Life Insurance 108
Dental Insurance 1,031
Other Fringe Benefits 981
Travel 677
Diesel Fuel 2,652
Office Supplies 1,988
Uniforms 2,454
Utilities 9,599
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Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund (Cont.)
Public Health and Welfare (Cont.)
Recycling Center (Cont.)

Other Supplies and Materials $ 40,269
Building Improvements 4,800
Other Equipment 3,504
Total Recycling Center 3 202,735

Other Operations
Other Charges

Trustee's Commission $ 31,686
Total Other Charges 31,686
Employee Benefits
Unemployment Compensation $ 3,122
Workers' Compensation Insurance 72,930
Total Employee Benefits 76,052
Highways
Litter and Trash Collection
Deputy(ies) $ 44,176
Longevity Pay 445
Social Security 3,484
State Retirement 3,988
Employee and Dependent Insurance 12,863
Life Insurance 72
Dental Insurance 603
Other Fringe Benefits 927
Travel 400
Diesel Fuel 1,548
Office Supplies 165
Uniforms 2
Other Supplies and Materials 1,552
Total Litter and Trash Collection 70,225
Total Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund $ 1,162,188

Drug Control Fund

Public Safety
Drug Enforcement

In-Service Training $ 230
Communication 290
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 2,470
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Drug Control Fund (Cont.)
Public Safety (Cont.)
Drug Enforcement (Cont.)

Other Supplies and Materials $ 307
Data Processing Equipment 37,165
Law Enforcement Equipment 145
Total Drug Enforcement $ 40,607

Other Operations
Other Charges
Trustee's Commission $ 117
Total Other Charges 117

Total Drug Control Fund $ 40,724

Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund
Finance
County Clerk's Office
Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses 3 685
Total County Clerk's Office $ 685

Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

Constitutional Officers' Operating Expenses 3 23
Total Sheriff's Department 23

Total Constitutional Officers - Fees Fund 708

Highway/Public Works Fund

Highways
Administration
County Official/Administrative Officer $ 70,350
Assistant(s) 35,630
Longevity Pay 1,069
Overtime Pay 2,621
Social Security 8,302
State Retirement 9,802
Employee and Dependent Insurance 13,119
Life Insurance 111
Dental Insurance 603
Other Fringe Benefits 842
Dues and Memberships 4,417
Postal Charges 53
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)
Highways (Cont.)
Administration (Cont.)

Travel $ 3,000
Office Supplies 1,220
Other Charges 905
Total Administration $ 152,044

Highway and Bridge Maintenance

Equipment Operators - Heavy $ 306,657
Truck Drivers 122,146
Laborers 64,253
Longevity Pay 13,960
Overtime Pay 30,779
Social Security 41,535
State Retirement 46,812
Employee and Dependent Insurance 100,262
Life Insurance 528
Dental Insurance 4,953
Other Fringe Benefits 6,068
Other Contracted Services 8,876
Asphalt - Cold Mix 38,218
Asphalt - Hot Mix 305,203
Asphalt - Liquid 428,477
Crushed Stone 125,057
Pipe - Metal 11,212
Road Signs 7,764
Salt 3,490
Sand 551
Other Supplies and Materials 145
Total Highway and Bridge Maintenance 1,666,946
Operation and Maintenance of Equipment
Mechanic(s) $ 89,856
Longevity Pay 3,027
Overtime Pay 1,565
Social Security 7,307
State Retirement 8,472
Employee and Dependent Insurance 19,423
Life Insurance 108
Dental Insurance 905
Other Fringe Benefits 1,067
Laundry Service 1,992
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Highway/Public Works Fund (Cont.)
Highways (Cont.)

Operation and Maintenance of Equipment (Cont.)
Diesel Fuel

Equipment and Machinery Parts
Gasoline
Lubricants
Tires and Tubes
Total Operation and Maintenance of Equipment

Other Charges
Communication

Electricity
Natural Gas
Water and Sewer
Trustee's Commission
Vehicle and Equipment Insurance
Other Charges
Total Other Charges

Employee Benefits
Unemployment Compensation
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Total Employee Benefits

Capital Outlay
State Aid Projects
Total Capital Outlay

Total Highway/Public Works Fund

General Debt Service Fund
Principal on Debt
General Government
Principal on Notes
Principal on Other Loans
Total General Government

Education
Principal on Notes
Principal on Other Loans
Total Education

148

72,668
31,056
34,381

5,030
12,177

6,498
3,854
6,531
812
21,305
49,955
4,140

5,956
59,254

280,993

48,404

820,450

400,000

1,029,550

$ 289,034

93,095

65,210

280,993

$ 868,854

1,429,550

$

2,547,322

(Continued)



Exhibit L-8

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types (Cont.)

General Debt Service Fund (Cont.)
Interest on Debt
General Government
Interest on Other Loans
Total General Government

Education
Interest on Notes
Interest on Other Loans
Total Education

Other Debt Service
General Government
Financial Advisory Services
Trustee's Commission
Underwriter's Discount
Other Debt Issuance Charges
Total General Government

Education
Other Debt Issuance Charges
Total Education

Capital Projects - Donated
Capital Projects Donated to Other Entities
Contributions
Total Capital Projects Donated to Other Entities

Total General Debt Service Fund

Total Governmental Funds - Primary Government
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457,108

22,000

1,265,350

1,500
60,936
7,500
10,300

100,000

764,298

$ 457,108

1,287,350

80,236

100,000

764,298

$ 4,987,396

$ 33,294,144
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Purpose School Fund
Instruction
Regular Instruction Program

Teachers $ 14,181,961

Career Ladder Program
Career Ladder Extended Contracts
Homebound Teachers
Salary Supplements
Educational Assistants
Certified Substitute Teachers
Non-certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Textbooks
Other Supplies and Materials
In Service/Staff Development
Fee Waivers
Other Charges
Regular Instruction Equipment
Other Equipment

Total Regular Instruction Program

Alternative Instruction Program

Teachers $

Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Other Supplies and Materials
Other Equipment
Total Alternative Instruction Program

150

233,585
62,960
35,759
46,324

806,680
39,972

217,615

1,151,716

991,355

29,163
3,462,331

138,287

10,048
175

146,554

301,994

467,489

7,945
1,250
10,000
34,408

286,336

49,363

176,951
13,198
11,360

362
217,186
1,206
1,000
1,500
1,500
1,000

$ 22,713,270

235,263
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department (Cont.)

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)
Special Education Program

Teachers $ 1,454,514
Career Ladder Program 25,845
Homebound Teachers 10,691
Educational Assistants 51,494
Speech Pathologist 126,549
Certified Substitute Teachers 3,473
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 8,382
Social Security 124,185
State Retirement 99,946
Life Insurance 2,623
Medical Insurance 349,355
Dental Insurance 12,163
Contracts with Private Agencies 4,875
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 200
Instructional Supplies and Materials 5,101
Other Supplies and Materials 1,830
Other Charges 500
Special Education Equipment 5,000
Total Special Education Program $ 2,286,626
Vocational Education Program
Teachers $ 1,322,884
Career Ladder Program 11,000
Educational Assistants 14,078
Certified Substitute Teachers 1,268
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 3,876
Social Security 101,485
State Retirement 83,005
Life Insurance 2,873
Medical Insurance 195,093
Dental Insurance 8,142
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 5,650
Travel 9,970
Other Contracted Services 41,475
Instructional Supplies and Materials 21,531
T&I Construction Materials 5,687
Textbooks 5,560
Other Supplies and Materials 1,813
Other Charges 15,569
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)
Vocational Education Program (Cont.)
Vocational Instruction Equipment 3 9,224
Total Vocational Education Program $ 1,860,183

Support Services

Attendance
Supervisor/Director $ 107,678
Career Ladder Program 1,000
Social Security 8,829
State Retirement 6,977
Life Insurance 141
Medical Insurance 11,734
Dental Insurance 302
Travel 259
Other Supplies and Materials 486
Other Charges 343

Total Attendance 137,749

Health Services

Medical Personnel $ 144,587
Part-time Personnel 7,083
Social Security 10,880
State Retirement 12,545
Life Insurance 296
Medical Insurance 42,829
Dental Insurance 2,412
Travel 124
Other Contracted Services 3,000
Drugs and Medical Supplies 1,058
Other Supplies and Materials 2,500
In Service/Staff Development 356
Health Equipment 1,500
Total Health Services 229,170

Other Student Support

Career Ladder Program $ 4,600
Guidance Personnel 625,079
Social Security 46,437
State Retirement 40,387
Life Insurance 1,004
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Other Student Support (Cont.)

Medical Insurance $ 158,770
Dental Insurance 4,219
Evaluation and Testing 21,093
Travel 600
Other Supplies and Materials 278
In Service/Staff Development 192
Other Charges 16,500
Total Other Student Support $ 919,159
Regular Instruction Program
Supervisor/Director $ 198,020
Career Ladder Program 22,200
Career Ladder Extended Contracts 12,000
Librarians 438,216
Instructional Computer Personnel 191,212
Secretary(ies) 33,902
Social Security 64,765
State Retirement 58,247
Life Insurance 1,250
Medical Insurance 145,697
Dental Insurance 6,333
Travel 11,561
Library Books/Media 75,316
Total Regular Instruction Program 1,258,719

Special Education Program

Supervisor/Director $ 63,013
Career Ladder Program 4,000
Secretary(ies) 22,761
Clerical Personnel 19,631
Social Security 8,421
State Retirement 8,275
Life Insurance 177
Medical Insurance 21,475
Dental Insurance 905
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 1,178
Travel 11,672
Other Supplies and Materials 1,500
Other Charges 800
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Exhibit L-9

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Special Education Program (Cont.)
Other Equipment
Total Special Education Program

Vocational Education Program
Supervisor/Director
Career Ladder Program
Clerical Personnel
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Travel
Other Supplies and Materials
In Service/Staff Development
Other Charges

Total Vocational Education Program

Other Programs
On-Behalf Payments to OPEB

Total Other Programs

Board of Education
Board and Committee Members Fees
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Unemployment Compensation
Audit Services
Dues and Memberships
Legal Services
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Other Supplies and Materials
Trustee's Commission
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Other Charges
Total Board of Education

154

500

62,796
500
31,933
7,675
7,501

11,053
603
7,075
486
1,128
749

248,657

28,800
2,203
1,330

604
228,964
1,206

87,982

10,000

11,313

31,121

10,652
9,979

898
271,758
169,152

1,739

$

164,308

131,597

248,657

867,701
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Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department (Cont.)

General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Director of Schools

County Official/Administrative Officer $ 91,885
Career Ladder Program 1,000
Social Security 7,037
State Retirement 6,029
Life Insurance 74
Medical Insurance 5,527
Dental Insurance 302
Dues and Memberships 11,275
Postal Charges 2,830
Travel 3,451
Other Contracted Services 6,788
Office Supplies 5,023
Criminal Investigation of Applicants - TBI 7,320
Other Charges 3,286
Administration Equipment 264
Total Director of Schools $ 152,091

Office of the Principal

Principals $ 790,684
Career Ladder Extended Contracts 14,660
Assistant Principals 719,155
Secretary(ies) 445,076
Clerical Personnel 203,464
Social Security 161,432
State Retirement 151,465
Life Insurance 3,063
Medical Insurance 428,076
Dental Insurance 19,053
Other Charges 7,800
Total Office of the Principal 2,943,928
Operation of Plant
Custodial Personnel $ 1,045,720
Social Security 79,465
State Retirement 77,904
Life Insurance 2,035
Medical Insurance 262,854
Dental Insurance 15,078
Communication 80,718
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Operation of Plant (Cont.)

Janitorial Services $ 19,943
Pest Control 9,360
Disposal Fees 21,171
Contracts for Landfill Facilities 16,416
Other Contracted Services 19,431
Custodial Supplies 119,998
Electricity 1,528,930
Natural Gas 283,482
Uniforms 3,025
Water and Sewer 125,818
Building and Contents Insurance 232,459
Other Charges 241
Plant Operation Equipment 1,615
Total Operation of Plant $ 3,945,663
Maintenance of Plant
Supervisor/Director $ 43,930
Secretary(ies) 22,538
Maintenance Personnel 267,940
Part-time Personnel 12,956
Social Security 25,858
State Retirement 29,682
Life Insurance 434
Medical Insurance 57,562
Dental Insurance 3,317
Maintenance Agreements 5,500
Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings 197,635
Other Contracted Services 38,063
Equipment and Machinery Parts 8,758
Fertilizer, Lime, and Seed 8,709
Drainage Materials 13,345
Chemicals 1,982
Other Supplies and Materials 42,753
Other Charges 6,482
Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment 53,908
Maintenance Equipment 57,446
Total Maintenance of Plant 898,798
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)

Transportation

Supervisor/Director $ 43,923
Mechanic(s) 93,563
Bus Drivers 839,392
Clerical Personnel 24,221
Attendants 19,168
Overtime Pay 649
Other Salaries and Wages 18,567
Social Security 77,254
State Retirement 84,830
Life Insurance 2,813
Medical Insurance 410,323
Dental Insurance 21,285
Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles 3,173
Other Contracted Services 5,172
Equipment and Machinery Parts 9,377
Gasoline 254,851
Lubricants 8,070
Office Supplies 1,188
Tires and Tubes 27,884
Vehicle Parts 57,735
Other Supplies and Materials 6,708
In Service/Staff Development 2,677
Other Charges 2,985
Transportation Equipment 239,414
Total Transportation $ 2,255,222
Central and Other
Assistant(s) 3 81,169
Supervisor/Director 43,858
Secretary(ies) 30,949
Clerical Personnel 50,030
School Resource Officer 39,034
Other Salaries and Wages 1,523
Social Security 18,690
State Retirement 20,697
Life Insurance 219
Medical Insurance 25,052
Dental Insurance 1,508
Travel 2,264
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Central and Other (Cont.)

Other Contracted Services $ 4,190
Other Supplies and Materials 16,330
Regular Instruction Equipment 2,499
Total Central and Other $ 338,012

Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Community Services

Supervisor/Director $ 18,600
Social Workers 32,832
Other Salaries and Wages 56,660
Social Security 9,148
State Retirement 6,299
Life Insurance 72
Medical Insurance 8,503
Dental Insurance 603
Travel 2,455
Food Supplies 613
Other Supplies and Materials 5,747
Fee Waivers 4,336
Other Charges 1,106
Total Community Services 146,974

Early Childhood Education

Supervisor/Director $ 19,457
Teachers 528,817
Educational Assistants 132,872
Other Salaries and Wages 20,416
Certified Substitute Teachers 140
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 10,668
Social Security 53,608
State Retirement 47,205
Life Insurance 1,546
Medical Insurance 178,188
Dental Insurance 4,222
Travel 2,961
Instructional Supplies and Materials 3,189
Other Supplies and Materials 1,479
In Service/Staff Development 2,947
Other Charges 15,613
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General Purpose School Fund (Cont.)
Operation of Non-Instructional Services (Cont.)
Early Childhood Education (Cont.)
Regular Instruction Equipment $
Total Early Childhood Education

Capital Outlay
Regular Capital Outlay
Engineering Services $
Building Improvements
Site Development
Other Capital Outlay
Total Regular Capital Outlay

Total General Purpose School Fund

School Federal Projects Fund
Instruction

Regular Instruction Program
Teachers $
Educational Assistants
Other Salaries and Wages
Certified Substitute Teachers
Non-certified Substitute Teachers
Social Security
State Retirement
Life Insurance
Medical Insurance
Dental Insurance
Unemployment Compensation
Other Fringe Benefits
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Other Contracted Services
Instructional Supplies and Materials
Other Charges
Regular Instruction Equipment

Total Regular Instruction Program

Special Education Program
Teachers $
Homebound Teachers
Educational Assistants
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1,011

5,400
205,082
471

108,863

972,274
468,557
18,394
2,268
23,050
103,016
91,654
1,911
314,965
14,951
5,820
4,479
50,777
256,030
135,084
3,514

498,557

371,252
36,824
638,779

$

$

1,024,339

319,816

2,965,301

$ 43,077,245
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Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department (Cont.)

School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Instruction (Cont.)
Special Education Program (Cont.)

Other Salaries and Wages 3 90,333
Certified Substitute Teachers 56
Non-certified Substitute Teachers 24,469
Social Security 87,646
State Retirement 82,022
Life Insurance 3,286
Medical Insurance 354,082
Dental Insurance 21,262
Unemployment Compensation 7,775
Contracts with Private Agencies 119,734
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 143
Other Contracted Services 1,727
Instructional Supplies and Materials 97,365
Other Supplies and Materials 27,102
Other Charges 24,788
Special Education Equipment 187,835
Total Special Education Program $ 2,176,480
Vocational Education Program
Other Supplies and Materials 3 1,500
Other Charges 1,500
Vocational Instruction Equipment 76,989
Total Vocational Education Program 79,989

Support Services
Health Services

Other Supplies and Materials 3 1,878
Total Health Services 1,878

Other Student Support

Guidance Personnel $ 29,989
Social Security 1,859
Employer Medicare 435
Evaluation and Testing 300
Travel 17,589
Other Contracted Services 2,000
Food Supplies 6,056
In Service/Staff Development 2,469
Other Charges 34,881
Total Other Student Support 95,578
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School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Regular Instruction Program

Supervisor/Director $ 77,285
Instructional Computer Personnel 17,110
Secretary(ies) 36,902
Other Salaries and Wages 202,332
Social Security 24,027
State Retirement 21,488
Life Insurance 324
Medical Insurance 45,895
Dental Insurance 1,508
Unemployment Compensation 630
Other Fringe Benefits 1,236
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 307
Travel 1,003
Other Contracted Services 39,361
Other Supplies and Materials 4,351
In Service/Staff Development 193,809
Other Charges 5,410
Other Equipment 4,101
Total Regular Instruction Program $ 677,079

Special Education Program

Psychological Personnel 3 139,526
Other Salaries and Wages 99,957
Social Security 17,655
State Retirement 16,520
Life Insurance 434
Medical Insurance 39,583
Dental Insurance 1,827
Unemployment Compensation 735
Travel 2,908
In Service/Staff Development 26,501
Other Equipment 8,048
Total Special Education Program 353,694

Vocational Education Program

Teachers 3 5,880
Social Security 365
State Retirement 378
Employer Medicare 85

(Continued)

161



Exhibit L-9

Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Expenditures -
All Governmental Fund Types
Discretely Presented Cumberland County School Department (Cont.)

School Federal Projects Fund (Cont.)
Support Services (Cont.)
Vocational Education Program (Cont.)

Travel $ 162
In Service/Staff Development 100
Total Vocational Education Program $ 6,970

Operation of Plant

Custodial Personnel $ 1,206
Social Security 92
State Retirement 56
Total Operation of Plant 1,354

Transportation

Other Charges $ 47,206
Transportation Equipment 63,981
Total Transportation 111,187

Capital Outlay
Regular Capital Qutlay

Building Improvements 3 26,200
Site Development 3,129
Building Purchases 102,689
Other Capital Outlay 217,146
Total Regular Capital Outlay 349,164
Total School Federal Projects Fund $ 6,818,674

Central Cafeteria Fund
Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Food Service

Supervisor/Director $ 45,677
Accountants/Bookkeepers 71,287
Cafeteria Personnel 1,073,147
Maintenance Personnel 59,987
Longevity Pay 4,000
Other Salaries and Wages 8,228
Social Security 96,652
State Retirement 71,660
Life Insurance 1,452
Medical Insurance 221,343
Dental Insurance 12,480
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Central Cafeteria Fund (Cont.)
Operation of Non-Instructional Services (Cont.)
Food Service (Cont.)

Unemployment Compensation $ 4,343
Communication 5,585
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment 13,276
Maintenance and Repair Services - Office Equipment 1,133
Pest Control 3,960
Transportation - Other than Students 26,856
Travel 7,368
Disposal Fees 19,524
Contracts for Landfill Facilities 11,413
Other Contracted Services 7,190
Equipment and Machinery Parts 29,961
Food Supplies 1,504,850
Office Supplies 7,098
Uniforms 2,003
Utilities 2,996
USDA - Commodities 107,554
Other Supplies and Materials 118,976
In Service/Staff Development 3,611
Other Charges 22,958
Food Service Equipment 41,593
Total Food Service $ 3,608,161
Total Central Cafeteria Fund $ 3,608,161
Total Governmental Funds - Cumberland County School Department $ 53,504,080
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General Fund
Capital Projects
Other General Government Projects
Other Construction $ 1,095,090

Total Other General Government Projects $ 1,095,090

Total General Fund

Total Governmental Funds - Cumberland County Railroad Authority
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$

$

1,095,090

1,095,090
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues
Charges of Current Services
Tipping Fees

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Public Health and Welfare
Landfill Operation and Maintenance
Supervisor/Director
Equipment Operators
Part-time Personnel
Longevity Pay
Overtime Pay
Social Security
State Retirement
Employee and Dependent Insurance
Life Insurance
Dental Insurance
Other Fringe Benefits
Engineering Services
Evaluation and Testing
Maintenance and Repair Services - Equipment
Travel
Permits
Contracts for Landfill Facilities
Other Contracted Services
Diesel Fuel
Equipment Parts - Heavy
Office Supplies
Uniforms
Utilities
Gravel and Chert
Daily Cover Material
Other Supplies and Materials
Depreciation
Landfill Closure/Postclosure Care Costs
Other Charges
Total Landfill Operation and Maintenance

Other Operations
Other Charges
Trustees' Commission

Employee Benefits
Unemployment Compensation
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Total Employee Benefits

Total Expenses

165

Enterprise
Fund

Solid Waste

Disposal
Fund

$ 393,099

$ 393,099

$ 40,310
106,462
7,409
2,794
23
12,072
12,608
32,286
182
1,509
1,354
3,959
17,691
27,713
1,131
30,224
55,769
498,783
37,871
12,000
1,026
1,563
20,151
51,915
24,260
111,328
449,280
398,538
99,393

$ 2,059,604

$ 1,895

3 515
17,578

$ 18,093

$ 2,079,592
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Detailed Receipts, Disbursements,

and Changes in Cash Balance - City Agency Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cities -
Sales Tax
Fund

Cash Receipts
Local Option Sales Tax $ 6,575,663
Cash Disbursements
Remittance of Revenues Collected $ 6,509,906
Trustee's Commission 65,757
Total Cash Disbursements $ 6,575,663
Excess of Cash Receipts Over (Under)
Cash Disbursements $ 0
Cash Balance, July 1, 2009 0
Cash Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 0
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMESK. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 15, 2010

Cumberland County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Cumberland County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Cumberland County, Tennessee, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise Cumberland County’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2010. Our report was
modified to include a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
auditing standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited
the financial statements of the Cumberland County Emergency Communications District as
described in our report on Cumberland County’s financial statements. This report does not
include the results of the other auditors testing of internal control over financial reporting
or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cumberland County’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
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an opinion on the effectiveness of Cumberland County’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cumberland
County’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and
other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness i1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there
1s a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
following deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs to be material weaknesses: 10.01, 10.03, and 10.12.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance. We consider the following deficiencies described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be significant deficiencies:
10.04, 10.05, 10.06, 10.07, 10.08, and 10.13.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cumberland County's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 10.02, 10.09, 10.10, and
10.11.

We also noted certain matters that we reported to management of Cumberland County in
separate communications.

Cumberland County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the

accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Cumberland
County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, county mayor,
road superintendent, director of schools, County Commission, Board of Education, Railroad
Authority Board of Directors, others within Cumberland County, federal awarding agencies
and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
9&,4,/ LA

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/sb
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF COUNTY AUDIT
SUITE 1500
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-1402
PHONE (615) 401-7841

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

December 15, 2010

Cumberland County Mayor and
Board of County Commissioners
Cumberland County, Tennessee

To the County Mayor and Board of County Commissioners:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cumberland County with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2010. Cumberland County’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Cumberland
County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Cumberland County’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Cumberland County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
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believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of Cumberland County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Cumberland County complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for

the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Cumberland County is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit,
we considered Cumberland County’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Cumberland County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant
deficiencies as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
as items 10.07 and 10.14. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Cumberland County as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, and have issued our reports thereon dated December 15, 2010. Our audit
was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that
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collectively comprise Cumberland County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Cumberland County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Cumberland
County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the county
mayor, road superintendent, director of schools, County Commission, Board of Education,
Railroad Authority Board of Directors, others within Cumberland County, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Yours very truly,
%L// WL

Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury

JPW/sb
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Passed-through
Federal/Pass-through Agency/State CFDA Entity Identifying
Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Office of National Drug Control Policy:
Passed-through Laurel County, Kentucky Fiscal Court:
Appalachian High Intensity Drug Traffic Area Program 07.XXX 3) 3 9,526
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Direct Programs:
Rural Business Enterprise Grants 10.769 2) $ 18,517
Passed-through State Department of Agriculture:
National School Lunch Program (Commodities - Noncash Assistance) 10.555 N/A 107,554
Passed-through State Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 606,558
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 1,801,887

Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability (ARRA) 10.579 N/A 21,559

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.852 N/A 34,725
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 2,590,800
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Passed-through State Department of Economic and Community

Development:

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 GG-08-24591-00 §$ 262,713
U.S. Department of Interior:
Passed-through Middle Tennessee State University:
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 C09-0701 $ 6,000
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Programs:
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 N/A $ 38,024
Passed-through State Commission on Children and Youth:

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States 16.540 2) 26,788
Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 64,812
U.S. Department of Labor:

Passed-through East Tennessee Human Resource Agency:

WIA Cluster:

WIA Adult Program 17.258 N/A $ 161,330
WIA Adult Program - ARRA 17.258 N/A 19,786
WIA Youth Activities 17.259 N/A 124,515
WIA Youth Activities - ARRA 17.259 N/A 82,822
WIA Dislocated Workers 17.260 N/A 146,001
WIA Dislocated Workers - ARRA 17.260 N/A 50,878

Total U.S. Department of Labor $ 585,332

U.S. Department of Education:

Passed-through State Department of Education:

Title I Cluster:

Title I Grant to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 N/A $ 1,899,339
Title I Grant to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 84.389 N/A 731,832
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 N/A 1,398,738
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 N/A 44,921
Special Education - Grants to States, Recovery Act 84.391 N/A 1,102,744
Special Education - Preschool Grants, Recovery Act 84.392 N/A 24,747

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 N/A 142,799

Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities - State Grants 84.186 2) 28,727

Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 N/A 21,089

Twenty-first Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 2) 400,000

Technology Cluster:

Education Technology State Grants 84.318 2) 19,737
Education Technology State Grants, Recovery Act 84.386 2) 36,033
Rural Education 84.358 N/A 158,541
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 N/A 11,816
(Continued)
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Cumberland County, Tennessee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Grants (1) (Cont.)

Federal Passed-through
Federal/Pass-through Agency/State CFDA  Entity Identifying
Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education (Cont.):
Passed-through State Department of Education (Cont.):
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 N/A $ 431,823
Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families, Recovery Act 84.393 N/A 196,826
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Education Sate Grants,
Recovery Act 84.394 N/A 1,319,400
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Government Services,
Recovery Act 84.397 N/A 257,086
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 8,226,198
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed-through State Department of Health:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 2) $ 27,541
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Passed-through State Department of Military:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster) 97.036 2) $ 19,874
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2) 43,269
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security $ 63,143
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 11,836,065
Contract
State Grants Number
Railroad Rehabilitation Grant - State Department of Transportation N/A (6) $ 1,093,341
Archives Grant - Tennessee Secretary of State N/A 2) 10,000
State Reappraisal Program - Comptroller of the Treasury N/A 2 31,996
Law Enforcement Training - State Department of Safety N/A 2) 30,000
Litter Program - State Department of Transportation N/A 2) 49,834
Rural Local Health Services - State Department of Health N/A 2) 371,353
Pilot and Voluntary State Funded Classrooms Grant - State
Department of Education N/A 2) 1,031,672
Lottery for Education - LEAPS - State Department of Education N/A 2) 115,000
Tennessee Early Intervention System - State Department of Education N/A 2) 215,957
Waste Tire Storage and Disposal - State Department of
Environment and Conservation N/A 7-08-020212-00 23,772
Total State Grants $ 2,972,925

CFDA = Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
N/A = Not Applicable

(1) Presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and prepared on the modified

accrual basis of accounting.
(2) Information not available.
(3) G10APOO1A: $3,459; 17PAPP501Z: $6,067.
(4) Total for CFDA No. 10.555 is $1,909,441.

(5) Coordinated School Health: $100,000; Internet Connectivity: $20,986; Family Resource Centers: $33,300;

Career Ladder - Extended Contract: $80,800; Safe Schools: $22,000.

(6) Z-08-02888-00: $4,471; Z-08-020929-00: $15,780; Z-09-213037-00: $33,554; Z-09-213054-00: $959;
7-09-213099-00: $988,634; Z-09-213073-00: $10,741; Z-10-220809-00: $31,485; Z-10-220827-00: $7,717.

(7) Total for CFDA No. 17.258 is $181,116.
(8) Total for CFDA No. 17.259 is $207,337.
(9) Total for CFDA No. 17.260 is $196,879.

175

®)



Cumberland County, Tennessee

Schedule of Audit Findings Not Corrected
June 30, 2010

Government Auditing Standards require auditors to report the status of uncorrected
findings from prior audits. Presented below are findings from the Annual Financial Report
of Cumberland County, Tennessee, for the year ended June 30, 2009, which have not been
corrected.

OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

Finding Page

Number Number Subject

09.01 204 The General Fund required material audit
adjustments for proper financial statement
presentation

09.03 205 The Solid Waste Disposal Fund had a deficit in

unrestricted net assets

OFFICE OF SHERIFF

Finding Page

Number Number Subject

09.06 208 Receipts were not issued at the time of
collection, and some collections were not
deposited within three days

OTHER FINDING

Finding Page

Number Number Subject

09.07 209 Duties were not segregated adequately in the

Finance Department and in the Offices of
Trustee, County Clerk, Register, and Sheriff
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY, TENNESSEE,
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

PART I, SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Our report on the financial statements of Cumberland County is unqualified.
The audit of the financial statements of Cumberland County disclosed significant
deficiencies in internal control. Three of these deficiencies were considered to be

material weaknesses.

The audit disclosed one instance of noncompliance that was material to the financial
statements of Cumberland County.

The audit disclosed one significant deficiency in internal control over major
programs.

An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs.

The audit revealed one finding that is required to be reported under Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133.

The Child Nutrition Cluster: School Breakfast Program and National School Lunch
Program (CFDA Nos. 10.553 and 10,555); Title I Cluster: Title I Grants to Local
Educational Agencies and Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery
Act (CFDA Nos. 84.010 and 84.389); WIA Cluster: WIA Adult Program, WIA Adult
Program - ARRA, WIA Youth Activities, WIA Youth Activities — ARRA, WIA
Disabled Workers, WIA Dislocated Workers — ARRA (CFDA Nos. 17.258, 17,259,
and 17.260); the Special Education Cluster: Special Education — Grants to States,
Special Education — Preschool Grants, Special Education — Grants to States,
Recovery Act, and Special Education — Preschool Grants, Recovery Act (CFDA Nos.
84.027, 84.173, 84.391, and 84.392); Twenty-first Century Community Learning
Centers (CFDA No. 84.287); Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (CFDA
No. 84.367); State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — Education State Grants,
Recovery Act (CFDA No. 84.394); and State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) —
Government Services, Recovery Act (CFDA No. 84.397) were determined to be major
programs.

A $300,000 threshold was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal
programs.

Cumberland County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.
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PART II, FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Findings and recommendations, as a result of our examination, are presented below. We
reviewed these findings and recommendations with management to provide an opportunity
for their response. Written responses of the current and former county mayors, director of
schools, county commission chairman, and former administrator of elections are
paraphrased in this report.

OFFICES OF FINANCE DIRECTOR AND TRUSTEE AND THE CUMBERLAND
COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY

FINDING 10.01 THE COUNTY'S GENERAL, GENERAL DEBT SERVICE, AND
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FUNDS; THE CUMBERLAND
COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY'S GENERAL FUND; AND
THE TRUSTEE’S CASH JOURNAL REQUIRED MATERIAL
AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS FOR PROPER FINANCIAL
STATEMENT PRESENTATION

(Internal Control — Material Weakness Under Government Auditing

Standards)

At June 30, 2010, certain general ledger account balances in the county’s General, General
Debt Service, and Solid Waste Disposal funds; the Cumberland County Railroad Authority’s
General Fund; and the trustee’s cash journal were not materially correct and audit
adjustments were required for the financial statements to be materially correct at year end.
Generally accepted accounting principles require Cumberland County, the Cumberland
County Railroad Authority, and the trustee to have adequate internal controls over the
maintenance of their accounting records. Material audit adjustments were required
because the county’s, the Railroad Authority’s, and trustee’s financial reporting systems did
not prevent, detect, or correct potential misstatements in the accounting records. It is a
strong indicator of a material weakness in internal controls if the county, the Railroad
Authority, and the trustee have ineffective controls over the maintenance of their
accounting records, which are used to prepare the financial statements, including the
related notes to the financial statements. This deficiency exists due to the failure of county
management to correct the finding noted in the prior-year audit report, and a lack of
management oversight by the Railroad Authority and trustee. We presented audit
adjustments to management that they approved and posted to properly present the
financial statements in this report.

RECOMMENDATION

Cumberland County, the Cumberland County Railroad Authority, and the trustee should
have appropriate processes in place to ensure that their general ledgers are materially
correct.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN

It would have been helpful if the “presented adjustments” that were posted had been
tabulated and included with the finding. I respectfully disagree with adjustments to the
General Debt Service Fund and county trustee concerning the interfund loan. It is my view
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that this transaction is not an interfund loan. It is a case of the trustee investing in a public
debt instrument of Cumberland County, which will be repaid over a fixed term, earning a
fixed interest rate, and should be treated no differently than any other financial instrument
that the trustee decides to invest the county’s cash. Suppose this had been a note issued by
Putnam County that the Cumberland County Trustee purchased in the marketplace as an
investment, it surely would not have been an internal loan nor treated any differently than
other investments.

AUDITOR’'S REBUTTAL

Audit adjustments were in fact presented to and approved by management. The county
issued a $5,000,000 capital outlay note from its idle funds on deposit in the General Debt
Service Fund and loaned the funds to the General Fund. The General Debt Service Fund
was also designated to repay the note. The trustee recorded this transaction by increasing
investments and increasing funds on deposit in the General Fund; however, in effect this
was a transfer of funds reducing the General Debt Service Fund and increasing the General
Fund. The county trustee maintains accounts on the cash basis; therefore, this transaction
did not increase investments but was in substance an interfund loan.

OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR

FINDING 10.02 THE COUNTY MAYOR ENTERED INTO AGREEMENTS ON
BEHALF OF THE COUNTY WITHOUT COUNTY COMMISSION
APPROVAL

(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

The county mayor entered into the following contractual agreements on behalf of
Cumberland County without the County Commission’s approval:

A. Between July 30, 2010, and August 31, 2010, the county mayor entered into
four lease agreements to lease county owned property to other entities. The
four entities that leased the property from the county had been using the
property for varied periods of time prior to the lease agreements being
executed. Also, from our review of county records it appears that the County
Commission was aware that these four entities had been using county owned
space; however, the county mayor entered into these lease agreements
without first getting the approval of the County Commission. Three of the
lease agreements provided for the entities to pay the county $1 per year
through 2015 for the use of the space. The fourth agreement provided for the
entity to pay the county $1 per year for the use of the space, but it was
perpetual and did not have an ending date. Section 5-7-116, Tennessee Code
Annotated, states “Each county may lease land or existing buildings owned
by the county to any person, corporation, partnership or association for such
consideration and upon such terms as in the judgment of the governing body
are in the interest of the county.” While it may have been public knowledge
in the county that these four entities were already using county owned space,
the law is clear that any lease must be approved by the County Commission.

179



On August 11, 2010, the county mayor entered into a contract allowing a
private corporation the right to name the county’s amphitheater for $23,000
for the first five years and $9,000 for an additional three years without
obtaining approval of the County Commission. The private corporation
agreed to pay the $23,000 contract amount to various vendors for the
construction of the amphitheater. Section 5-9-401, Tennessee Code
Annotated, states that “All funds from whatever source derived, including,
but not limited to, taxes, county aid funds, federal funds, and fines, that are
to be used in the operation and respective programs of the various
departments, commissions, institutions, boards, offices and agencies of
county governments shall be appropriated to such use by the county
legislative bodies.” Furthermore, since the county was not involved in the
construction of the amphitheater, we could not determine if the amphitheater
project was bid in compliance with the county’s purchasing procedures
established under the County Financial Management System of 1981, which
requires purchases over $5,000 to be competitively bid.

On August 31, 2010, the county mayor transferred two trademarks registered
to Cumberland County to the Crossville-Cumberland County Convention and
Visitors Bureau without the County Commission’s approval.

RECOMMENDATION

The county mayor should obtain the County Commission’s approval prior to entering into
contracts or lease agreements. Furthermore, all county revenues should be deposited with
the county trustee and disbursements issued by the county Finance Department in
accordance with appropriations approved by the County Commission as required by state

statute.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — FORMER COUNTY MAYOR — BROCK HILL

A.

The County Commission has historically provided office space to these entities at no
cost without formal written leases. All I did was to formalize the previous actions of
the County Commission.

Again, all I did was to formalize actions known by the County Commission and
reported by the media.

These trademarks were originally registered years ago in the name of Cumberland
County since there was no legal entity for tourism at that time to protect our
copyrights. Cumberland County does not promote tourism, the Convention and
Visitors Bureau promotes tourism. Therefore, these trademarks were transferred to
the Convention and Visitors Bureau so their ownership would not be jeopardized.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — CURRENT COUNTY MAYOR — KENNETH CAREY, JR.

The current administration has a policy of presenting any and all items pertaining to
transfer, sale, or disposal of any and all county owned assets or property before the county
commission for their approval, prior to taking any such actions.

OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

FINDING 10.03 THE SCHOOL FEDERAL PROJECTS AND SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL FUNDS HAD FUND DEFICITS
(Internal Control — Material Weakness Under Government Auditing

Standards)

The following fund deficits were noted:

A. The School Federal Projects Fund had a deficit in unreserved fund balance of
$353,500 at June 30, 2010. This deficit resulted from expenditures exceeding
grant funds requested and received.

B. The Solid Waste Disposal Fund had a deficit of $1,245,015 in unrestricted net
assets at June 30, 2010. This deficit resulted from the recognition of a
liability of $1,336,118 in the financial statements for costs associated with
closing the county’s landfill and monitoring the landfill for 30 years after its
closure. This deficiency can be attributed to the failure of management to
correct this finding noted in the prior-year audit report. Generally accepted
accounting principles and state statutes require that such costs be reflected
in the financial statements.

RECOMMENDATION

County officials should develop and implement plans that would liquidate the fund deficits.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

Adjustments were made to the special education payroll distributions early in the
2009-10 school year. Failure to read payroll requests in a timely manner resulted in over
drafting funds. We have reviewed our procedures for request of funds and have made
adjustments to our methods to avoid this happening in the future. Henceforth, fund
balances will be reviewed on a weekly basis.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN

The county has a plan to fund the closure expense over a two-year period. Much of the
expense will most likely be funded using a capital outlay note, which will be issued when
the cash is required.
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FINDING 10.04 APPROPRIATIONS EXCEEDED ESTIMATED AVAILABLE
FUNDS IN THE SOLID WASTE/SANITATION FUND
(Internal Control - Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

The budget and subsequent amendments approved by the County Commission for the Solid
Waste/Sanitation Fund resulted in appropriations exceeding estimated available funding by
$2,844. Sound budgetary principles dictate that appropriations be held within estimated
available funding.

RECOMMENDATION

Appropriations that exceed estimated available funding should not be submitted to the
County Commission, and the County Commission should not approve such appropriations.

FINDING 10.05 SCHOOL DEPARTMENT LEAVE RECORDS WERE NOT ON
FILE TO SUPPORT PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS
(Internal Control - Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

Personnel policies adopted by the School Department permit employees to accumulate
earned but unused vacation leave; however, neither the Finance Department nor the School
Department could provide us with accrued leave balances at June 30, 2010. Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 requires that all vacation pay should be
accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. We presented the
June 30, 2009, balances in the government-wide financial statements for June 30, 2010.
The presentation of prior-year leave amounts rather than current-year balances was not
considered to be material to the county’s financial statements. This deficiency is the result
of management’s failure to maintain appropriate leave records for School Department
employees.

RECOMMENDATION

Cumberland County should maintain summary accrued leave information by account
function for all employees of the School Department. These records should reflect the dollar
value of the leave at the beginning of the year, the amounts earned and used, and the value
of the leave at year-end.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — CURRENT COUNTY MAYOR — KENNETH CAREY, JR.

A number of years ago the Board of Education invested in a software program that, among
other things, accounts for accrued leave. The Finance Department and school
administration agreed that this would be the official accounting record. In prior years, this
requirement has been satisfied with records maintained by school administration. The
Finance Department will review with the school administration this GASB requirement
and stress the importance of maintaining appropriate leave records for School Department
employees.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

All personnel leave forms and time sheets are received in the school payroll division of the
Finance Department. While the school system does keep records of leave time of its
employees through its central database, this is not the official record of accrued leave. This
information is kept through the office leave forms and time sheets signed by the employee
and submitted to the payroll department. If it will help the process, the Finance
Department may have access to the school’s database for a check and balance for all
documents received by the payroll department.

FINDING 10.06 THE OFFICE HAD DEFICIENCIES 1IN PAYROLL
PROCEDURES
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

Our examination of the Finance Department revealed the following deficiencies in payroll
procedures.

A. Time sheets for solid waste truck drivers and convenience center employees
were not signed by the employee. A solid waste employee admitted to signing
the truck drivers’ names to their time sheets, and the convenience center
supervisor signed and initialed the convenience center employees’ time sheets
on their behalf. Employees should sign time sheets as verification that the
time reported is correct. If employees do not review and sign their time
sheets, it increases the risk that time will be reported and paid incorrectly.

B. During our examination, we noticed that a county solid waste truck driver
also owned a local disposal company. A comparison of the employee’s time
sheets and the landfill weight tickets indicated eight instances that the
employee was on county time when he was delivering trash to the landfill for
his disposal company.

RECOMMENDATION

County employees should sign their time sheets as verification that the time reported is
correct. Furthermore, employees should not work for their personal business during county
time. The county should review this employee’s time sheets and determine whether the
county should recover the funds paid while he was conducting personal business.
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FINDING 10.07 CUMBERLAND COUNTY DID NOT ACCOUNT FOR
AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA)
GRANTS SEPARATELY FROM OTHER COUNTY FUNDS
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133)

Cumberland County comingled ARRA revenues and expenditures with other local, state,
and federal funds. U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s (OMB) Compliance Supplement
requires grantees to agree to maintain records that identify adequately the source
(i.e., revenue) and application (i.e., expenditure) of ARRA awards. TRAM Directive No. 2
requires county governments to account for ARRA grant awards and expenditures
separately from the county’s other revenues and expenditures in the county’s financial
accounting system. This comingling of funds violates OMB’s compliance requirements and
increases the risks of preparing inaccurate reports required by ARRA. When ARRA grant
requirements are not followed, the OMB can terminate the grants; suspend or debar the
county from receiving grants; or, in serious cases, may apply civil or criminal penalties.
County officials stated they did not understand the requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

Cumberland County should separate the source (revenue) and application (expenditure) of
ARRA grant funds on the county’s accounting records.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — CURRENT COUNTY MAYOR — KENNETH CAREY, JR.

The finding is acknowledged. The Workforce Investment Program is no longer being
handled through Cumberland County as of July 1, 2010.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE — DIRECTOR OF SCHOOLS

Since many state grants were funded this year through ARRA funds the state received from
the federal government, reporting practices must be changed to meet the requirement of
ARRA. The School Department will work diligently to ensure that all ARRA funds,
including those received through state grants, are cost centered to reflect all expenditures.
This will be accomplished either by journal entry or upon payment of a purchase order.
Salaries and/or benefits will also be cost centered with a journal entry.
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ELECTION OFFICE AND OFFICE OF FINANCE DIRECTOR

On February 3, 2010, we received a fraud reporting form concerning possible violations of
the State Election Code and state statutes related to the fiscal management and practices
of the Cumberland County Election Commission and the former Cumberland County
Administrator of Elections. The findings and recommendations presented below were
presented to the Cumberland County Mayor, Board of County Commissioners, Election
Administrator, Finance Director, and Election Commission by letter dated
October 14, 2010.

FINDING 10.08 DEFICIENCIES WERE NOTED IN THE ELECTION OFFICE
AND THE FINANCE OFFICE
(Internal Control — Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

We noted the following deficiencies in the Election Office and the Finance Office:

A. During the period May 1, 2006, through November 30, 2008, we noted that
the Election Office submitted pay requests to the Finance Office listing each
election worker and a total amount to pay each worker. These documents did
not provide any details of the location, rate of pay, or the hours/days each
person worked. The Finance Office issued payroll checks based on this
incomplete information.

B. In addition to the election workers noted in Part A., disbursements totaling
$13,480 for emergency registrars and part-time employees were paid based
on insufficient documentation as noted above. Without sufficient detailed
documentation of the location, rates of pay, and the hours/days worked, we
could not determine if workers were paid in accordance with the pay rates
established by the Cumberland County Commission.

C. Early voting begins not more than 20 days and less than five days before the
day of the election as provided by Section 2-6-102, Tennessee Code
Annotated. Therefore, election officials conducting early voting could
theoretically work a maximum of 15 days less any Sundays during this time
frame. For each election’s early voting during the period examined, we
calculated the maximum number of days the election official could possibly
work at $80 per day and compared it with the amount of pay each election
official actually received. Based on this analysis, we determined that these
officials were paid $5,310 in excess of the pay rates established by a
resolution approved by the Cumberland County Commission. That resolution
dated April 17, 2006, established a pay rate of $80 per day for election
officials as recommended by the Election Commission. We noted several
instances where election officials conducting early voting were paid $100 per
day.

D. Election related disbursements totaling $10,910 were coded by the Finance
Office to accounts that did not reflect the true nature of the expenditures.
Expenditures of $8,910 for Election Commission members’ meeting fees and
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$2,000 for precinct rentals were coded to the line-item account code entitled
Election Workers instead of being properly coded to the Election Commission
and Precinct Rentals line-item account codes, respectively. These
misclassifications were done to keep expenditures within line-item
appropriations approved by the County Commission for the Election
Commission and Precinct Rentals. These entries resulted in expenditure
accounts not reflecting the true nature of these transactions.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cumberland County Election Office should provide adequate documentation to support
payroll disbursement requests for election workers. The Cumberland County Finance
Office should require detailed documentation that includes the location, rate of pay, and the
hours/days worked to support payroll disbursement requests submitted by the Election
Office for all election workers. The Finance Office and Election Office should ensure that
election officials are paid in accordance with pay rates approved by the County
Commission. The Finance Office should code election related disbursements to accounts
that most appropriately reflect the true nature of the transactions.

FINDING 10.09 MINUTES OF THE ELECTION COMMISSION WERE NOT
MAINTAINED FOR ALL MEETINGS
(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

Minutes of meetings for the Cumberland County Election Commission were not maintained
for the period October 3, 2006, through May 1, 2007. Section 2-1-113(a)(4), Tennessee Code
Annotated, requires that “official minutes of all meetings shall be kept in permanent
form...available for the public examination at reasonable times.”

RECOMMENDATION

Election officials should ensure that minutes of all meetings of the Election Commission are
maintained and available for public examination.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSES — FORMER ADMINISTRATOR OF ELECTIONS —
MS. SUZANNE SMITH

It is apparent to me from comments made in this report that many of the documents that
were previously located in the Election Office were not furnished to the auditor. The
following are my responses to the above-noted findings:

FINDING 10.08:

A./B. These findings address that the Election Office did not provide the Finance Office
any detail of when or what days election officials worked. Backup records were
maintained in the Election Office that disclosed what days each person worked. The
person in my office who had the hands-on responsibility for maintaining office
payroll records was Ms. Dot Hensley. I have verified with her that the backup
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payroll files showing the days each person worked were present in the office at the
time I was terminated. I understand Ms. Hensley provided this information to the
auditor. Section 2-7-135, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), requires only that the
office of elections prepare and certify to the County Election Commission a list of
election officials who served at the polling place and their official positions. My
report to the Finance Office complied with the statutory terms.

The Election Commission set the rate of pay for early voting officials at $80 per day
in April 2006. Subsequently, the Election Commission decided to raise the amount
of pay to $100 per day in order to recruit and maintain knowledgeable, experienced,
and dependable workers. The Election Commission voted and set the rate at $100
per day for these early voting officials.

At the time annual budgets for the Election Commission and polling place rental
fees are prepared, it is impossible to predict with certainty the amounts that will be
needed. It is a routine practice of all county departments to move minor amounts of
money from one line item to another line item within a budget year in order to stay
within the overall budget.

FINDING 10.09:

During the time I acted as administrator of elections, the minutes were drafted by the
secretary of the Election Commission, and the minutes of each meeting were always read
and approved at the following Election Commission meeting. After approval, the minutes
were placed in a file maintained in the Election Office. 1 have verified with Ms. Dot
Hensley that the Election Commission minutes were present in the Election Office at the
time I was terminated.

AUDITOR’S REBUTTALS

FINDING 10.08:

A./B.

The pay requests furnished by the Election Office to the Finance Office did not
provide any details of the location, rate of pay, or the hours/days each person
worked. Instead, the pay requests only listed each election worker by classification
and a total amount of pay. We interviewed Ms. Dot Hensley on September 13, 2010,
and she stated that she typed the summary pay requests that were forwarded to the
Finance Office based on handwritten paperwork prepared by Ms. Smith. Ms.
Hensley stated that Ms. Smith would review, sign, and submit the payroll requests
to the Finance Office for payment. Ms. Hensley did not provide us with any
documentation of location, rate of pay, or the hours/days each person worked. Ms.
Hensley stated that she did not recall ever seeing documentation to support
days/hours worked to support amounts noted on the payroll requests; however, she
believed Ms. Smith maintained that information.

Section 2-7-135, Tennessee Code Annotated (T'CA), provides that “the officer of
elections shall prepare and certify to the county election commission a list of all
election officials who served at the polling place and their official positions. The list
shall be signed by each official.” This statute has nothing to do with detailed
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documentation to furnish to the Finance Office on which to verify payrolls.
Cumberland County operates under the provisions of the County Financial
Management System of 1981, Sections 5-21-101 through 5-21-129, TCA. Section
5-21-115, TCA provides that before any obligation against the county shall be paid, a
detailed invoice should be prepared by the head of an office for which the obligation
was made and be filed with the finance director. The finance director shall preaudit
such invoice and shall approve for payment only such items that appear to be
correct. The finance director cannot preaudit for accuracy any payrolls without
detailed information such as the location, rate of pay, and hours/days worked.

C. We have not been provided any documentation to support that the Cumberland
County Commission approved a raise for the early voting officials above the $80 per
day rate that the County Commission set in April 2006. We interviewed former
election commissioner Ms. Linda Baehr and current election commissioner Ms. Lisa
Phillips who both stated that they believed the Election Commission raised the rate
to $100 per day but did not take that increase to the County Commission for
approval. Sections 2-4-108(c) and 2-4-107, TCA, state that compensation for election
officials may be increased by the County Commission.

D. Expenditures should be coded to accounts that most appropriately reflect the true
nature of the transactions. Misclassifying expenditures diminishes the usefulness of
the financial records as a management tool and results in a loss of budgetary
control. When necessary, budget amendments should be submitted to the County
Commission for consideration and approval.

FINDING 10.09:

We were not presented any minutes of meetings for the Cumberland County Election
Commission for the period October 3, 2006, through May 1, 2007.

OFFICE OF SHERIFF

FINDING 10.10 RECEIPTS WERE NOT ISSUED AT THE TIME OF
COLLECTION, AND SOME COLLECTIONS WERE NOT
DEPOSITED WITHIN THREE DAYS

(Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

Receipts were not always issued at the time of collection. Instead, checks were held in the
office and not receipted until the deposit ticket was created. The practice of issuing receipts
subsequent to the actual collection increases the risk that collections will not be accounted
for properly. Also, we noted as many as 11 days lapsed between the date funds were
receipted and the date funds were deposited to the office bank account. Section 5-8-207,
Tennessee Code Annotated, requires all public funds be deposited within three days of
collection. This deficiency exists due to the failure of management to correct the finding
noted in the prior-year audit report.
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RECOMMENDATION

Receipts should be issued at the time of collection. All receipts should be deposited to the
official bank account within three days of collection as required by state statute.

OFFICE OF CUMBERLAND COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY

FINDING 10.11 EXPENDITURES EXCEEDED APPROPRIATIONS
(Material Noncompliance Under Government Auditing Standards)

Total expenditures exceeded total appropriations in the fund by $243,098. Section 5-9-401,
Tennessee Code Annotated, states that “All funds from whatever source derived, including,
but not limited to, taxes, county aid funds, federal funds, and fines, that are to be used in
the operation and respective programs for the various departments, commissions,
institutions, boards, offices, and agencies of county governments shall be appropriated to
such use by the county legislative bodies.” This deficiency exists because management
failed to hold spending to the limits authorized by the County Commission, which resulted
in unauthorized expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION

Expenditures should be held within appropriations approved by the County Commission.

OTHER FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

FINDING 10.12 CUMBERLAND COUNTY HAS MATERIAL RECURRING
AUDIT FINDINGS
(Internal Control — Material Weakness Under Government Auditing

Standards)

Cumberland County has material audit findings that have been reported in its annual
financial reports for three or more consecutive years. These recurring material findings are
listed below:

Finding Numbers Description

10.01, 09.01, 08.01 The General Fund required material audit adjustments
for proper financial statement presentation

10.03, 09.03, 08.03 The Solid Waste Disposal Fund had a deficit in
unrestricted net assets
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The recurring nature of the above-noted findings indicates that management is either
unwilling or unable to address the deficiencies. The Local Government Modernization Act
of 2005 in Section 9-3-405, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), encourages local governments
to consider establishing an Audit Committee and further provides that the Comptroller
may require an Audit Committee be established in any local government that (1) is in
noncompliance with the accounting and financial reporting standards required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, or (2) has recurring findings from the annual
audit for three or more consecutive years as determined by the Comptroller to be a material
weakness in internal control or material noncompliance under Government Auditing
Standards. The responsibilities and duties of an Audit Committee are to address financial
and other reporting practices, internal control, compliance with laws and regulations, and
ethics.

RECOMMENDATION

Cumberland County should establish an Audit Committee to address financial and other
reporting practices, internal controls, compliance with laws and regulations, and ethics.
This Audit Committee should provide management with guidance to correct all reported
material weaknesses in internal control and material noncompliance. If these findings
continue to recur, Cumberland County may be required to establish an Audit Committee
under the provisions of Section 9-3-405, TCA.

FINDING 10.13 DUTIES WERE NOT SEGREGATED ADEQUATELY IN THE
FINANCE DEPARTMENT AND THE OFFICES OF TRUSTEE,
COUNTY CLERK, REGISTER, AND SHERIFF
(Internal Control - Significant Deficiency Under Government
Auditing Standards)

Duties were not segregated adequately among the officials and employees in the Finance
Department and in the Offices of the Trustee, County Clerk, Register, and Sheriff. Officials
and employees responsible for maintaining the accounting records were also involved in
receipting, depositing, and/or disbursing funds. Accounting standards provide that internal
controls be designed to give reasonable assurance of the reliability of financial reporting
and of the effectiveness and efficiency of operations. This lack of segregation of duties is
the result of management’s decisions based on the availability of financial resources and is
a significant deficiency in internal controls that increases the risk of unauthorized
transactions. Also, this deficiency exists because management failed to correct the finding
noted in the prior-year audit report.

RECOMMENDATION

Officials should segregate duties to the extent possible using available resources.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE — COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN

It is frustrating to be told year after year that duties are not segregated yet not one specific
example of an improper segregation of duties is given during the exit interview. It is
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difficult to try to make continuous improvement if one does not know what is being done
wrong. Furthermore, the recommendation that is included in the report has been for the
last three years, in fact, being done. Yet the same finding recurs. So what more needs to be
done to prevent this item from appearing again and again and again?

AUDITOR’S REBUTTAL

We have discussed the specifics of each of the improper segregation of duties with the
official in each office mentioned in this finding. Also, the recommendation included in this
report for the past three years has not been implemented. To prevent the recurrence of this
finding, county officials need to perform a risk assessment to identify their internal control
risks, and then implement internal control procedures to address these identified risks,
including separating duties so one person does not have custody of an entire transaction.
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY, TENNESSEE
AUDITEE REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

There were no audit findings relative to federal awards presented in the prior-year’s
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. There were audit findings relative to federal
awards presented in the current-year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

County Mayor — Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year’s Findings

FINDINGS 10.07 and 10.14

Contact person:

Corrective action planned:

Anticipated completion date:

FINDINGS 10.07 and 10.14

Contact person:

Corrective action planned:

Anticipated completion date:

Kenneth Carey, Jr., current county mayor

The finding is acknowledged. The Workforce Investment
Program is no longer being handled through
Cumberland County as of July 1, 2010.

2010-11

Aarona VanWinkle, director of schools

Since many state grants were funded this year through
ARRA funds the state received from the federal
government, reporting practices must be changed to
meet the requirement of ARRA funds. The Cumberland
County School System will work diligently to ensure
that all ARRA funds, including those received through
state grants, are cost centered to reflect all
expenditures. This will be accomplished either by
journal entry or upon payment of a purchase order.
Salaries and/or benefits will also be cost centered with a
journal entry.

2010-11
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